Persons with disabilities experiencing problems accessing PDF file should contact <u>nchsed@cdc.gov</u>, or call 301-458-4688

# HEALTH STATISTICS

#### FROM THE U. S. NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY

# Disability Days Due to Injury

# United States July 1959 - June 1961

Statistics on the disability days due to injury by age, sex, residence, geographic region, family income, usual activity status, race, and type and place of accident. Based on data collected in household interviews during the period July 1959-June 1961.

#### U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE Anthony J. Celebrezze, Secretary

PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE Luther L. Terry, Surgeon General

Washington, D. C.

February 1963

# NATIONAL CENTER FOR HEALTH STATISTICS

Forrest E. Linder, Ph. D., Director Theodore D. Woolsey, Assistant Director O. K. Sagen, Ph.D., Assistant Director

## U. S. NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY

Theodore D. Woolsey, Chief Alice M. Waterhouse, M.D., Medical Advisor James E. Kelly, D.D.S., Dental Advisor Walt R. Simmons, Statistical Advisor Arthur J. McDowell, Chief, Health Examination Survey Philip S. Lawrence, Sc.D., Chief, Health Interview Survey Robert T. Little, Chief, Automatic Data Processing

The U. S. National Health Survey is a continuing program under which the Public Health Service makes studies to determine the extent of illness and disability in the population of the United States and to gather related information. It is authorized by Public Law 652, 84th Congress.

#### CO-OPERATION OF THE BUREAU OF THE CENSUS

Under the legislation establishing the National Health Survey, the Public Health Service is authorized to use, insofar as possible, the services or facilities of other Federal, State, or private agencies.

In accordance with specifications established by the National Health Survey, the Bureau of the Census, under a contractual arrangement, participates in most aspects of survey planning, selects the sample, collects the data, and carries out certain parts of the statistical processing.

Public Health Service Publication No. 584-B40

# CONTENTS

Selected Findings	1
Source of Data	1
Disability Due to Injury	3
Sex, Age, and Residence	3
Geographic Region	່ 3
Family Income	4
Race	. 4
Usual Activity Status	5
Place of Accident	-5
Type of Accident	5
School-Loss Days Due to Injury	6
Detailed Tables	8
Appendix I Technical Notes on Methods	29
Background of This Report	29
Statistical Design of the Health Interview Survey	- 29
General Qualifications	30
Reliability of Estimates	30
Guide to Use of Relative Standard Error Charts	. 32
Annendix II. Definitions of Certain Terms Used in	2
This Report	36
Terms Relating to Persons Injured	36
Terms Relating to Disability	36
Terms Relating to Class of Accident	37
Terms Relating to Place of Accident	37
Terms Relating to Type of Accident	38
Demographic and Economic Terms	38
Appendix III Questionnaire	40

ţ

łO

Page

Data not available (three dashes)       -         Category not applicable (three dots)       .         Magnitude less than one-half of the unit       .         used       0 or 0         Magnitude of the sampling error precludes		SYMBOL	S AND NO	TFS	
Category not applicable (three dots) Magnitude less than one-half of the unit used 0 or ( Magnitude of the sampling error precludes	Data not	available (thre	e dashes)		· · · · · ·
Magnitude less than one-half of the unit used 0 or 0 Magnitude of the sampling error precludes	Category	not applicable	(three dots)-		•••
Magnitude of the sampling error precludes	Magnitud used	e less than one	-half of the u	nit 	0 or 0.0
showing separate estimates	Magnitud showing	e of the sampli ; separate estir	ng error pre nates	cludes	(*)

۰.

•

# DISABILITY DAYS DUE TO INJURY

### SELECTED FINDINGS

During the period July 1959 to June 1961, United States civilians experienced an average of 460.0 million restricted-activity days per year as a result of injuries. A restricted-activity day is a day when a person has to cut down on or give up his usual activities for the whole day because of illness or injury. The figure includes disability from all types of injuries and impairments resulting from injuries. Persons residing in institutions are excluded.

The total of 460.0 million days includes 113.5 million bed-disability days, 83.8 million workloss days among currently employed persons 17 years and older, and 11.9 million school-loss days for children 6-16 years of age.

The restricted-activity days associated with injury comprised 16.0 percent of the total days in which persons had to restrict their normal activities. Days of bed disability due to injury made up about 10.8 percent of the total bed disability reported. School-loss days attributed to injury amounted to only about 6.3 percent of all schoolloss days. However, work-loss days due to injury represented 22.8 percent, or nearly a fourth, of all work-loss days due to illness or injury (see table A).

The rate for all types of disability was higher for males than for females, and for restrictedactivity, bed-disability, and work-loss days the rate increased consistently with age. The rate of disability due to injury among males increased with declining population density, the highest rate of disability being in rural-farm areas, while this pattern was reversed for females with higher rates in uban and rural-nonfarm areas. Disability

This report was prepared by Geraldine A. Gleeson of the U.S. National Health Survey staff. due to injury was higher in the West than in other geographic areas of the United States.

Because of the high proportion of older persons in the low income groups and the high rate of disabling injury among these persons, the rate of disability due to injury was inversely related to the amount of family income.

The rates of restricted activity, 92.4 days per 100 population, and of bed disability, 23.2 days per 100 population, resulting from accidents occurring in the home, were higher than comparable rates for disability due to accidents in the street and highway, on farms, in industrial places, schools, or places of recreation. The rate of work loss, however, was highest from accidents occurring in industrial places and in the street, consisting principally of "while-at-work" and motor vehicle accidents.

Falls, other than those on stairs, steps, or from a height, accounted for 55.5 restricted-activity days per 100 population per year, the highest rate by type of accident. Moving motor vehicle accidents, even though these accounted for only 6.4 percent of the total number of persons injured, resulted in 14.6 bed-disability days per 100 population per year and 25.3 work-loss days per 100 currently employed persons per year. These rates were higher than for any of the other types of accidents.

## SOURCE OF DATA

The information contained in this report is derived from data collected by household interviews in the U. S. National Health Survey. The survey is continuous, each week covering a sample of the civilian, noninstitutional population in the United States. During the 104 weeks of interviewing on which this report is based (July 1959-June 1961), interviews were conducted in approximately 76,000 households comprised of about 250,000 persons.

	Total	Percent of total due to injury	
	Average number days in	of disability millions	· · · · ·
Restricted-activity days Bed-disability days Work-loss days School-loss days	2,883.8 1,047.4 367.2 189.7	460.0 113.5 83.8 11.9	16.0 10.8 22.8 6.3

Table A. Average annual number of disability days, with number and percent of days due to injury: United States, July 1959-June 1961

The presence of illness or injury among household members was determined by responses. to the "illness-recall" questions 11-17 on the questionnaire (see facsimile shown in Appendix III). For each illness or injury named in response to these questions, more detailed information was obtained about the condition (in table I), including the number of days of restricted activity, bed disability, and time lost from work or school associated with it during the two-week period prior to the week of interview. When responses to questions in table I indicated that an injury had occurred, the interviewer asked additional questions shown in table A (of the questionnaire) to obtain more detailed information relating to the accident and the injury.

Annual estimates of the number of persons injured are based on injury occurring in the twoweek period prior to interview. Annual estimates of days of disability due to injury are derived from the number of restricted-activity, bed-disability, and work-loss or school-loss days experienced during the two-week period prior to the week of interview, and include all such days reported, even if the injury causing the disability occurred prior to the two-week period.

The survey includes data only on persons living in the household at the time of the interview. Thus, injury experienced and disability due to injury for persons who died during the two-week period prior to the interview are excluded from the data. Also excluded is the disability associated with injury for persons who were institutionalized or who were members of the Armed Forces at the time of the interview. However, for former inmates of institutions or members of the Armed Forces, current disability resulting from an injury that occurred while the person was institutionalized or in the Armed Forces is included in the estimates.

A description of the statistical design of the health interview survey and general qualifications regarding data included in the report are presented in Appendix I. Since all estimates shown in this report are based on a sample of the population rather than on the entire population, these are subject to sampling error. The sampling errors for most of the estimates are relatively low, but if an estimated number, or the numerator or denominator of a rate or percentage is small, the sampling error may be high. Charts for estimating approximate sampling errors and instructions for using the charts are also presented in Appendix I.

Definitions of terms used in this report may be found in Appendix II. Since many of the terms have specialized meanings, it is suggested that the reader familiarize himself with these definitions.

A recent publication of the National Health Survey (Series B, No. 37) contains annual estimates of the number of persons injured, based on the same data collection period as the present report, July 1959-June 1961. Persons injured were classified in the report according to the type and class of accident causing the injury and according to several criteria of severity of injuries. It is suggested that the reader refer to this report to gain a more complete understanding of the disability information. In particular, the data contained in tables 8 to 13, Series B, No. 37, on medically attended, activity-restricting, bed-disabling, and hospitalized injuries by various demographic characteristics of the population, help to explain some of the differences in rates of disability due to injury.

### DISABILITY DUE TO INJURY

Based on estimates derived from data collected by household interview during the period, July 1959-June 1961, persons in the civilian, noninstitutional population experienced annually about 459,963,000 restricted-activity days due to an injury or to an impairment resulting from injury. Of the days in which normal activities were restricted, 113,539,000 were also bed-disability days, 83,773,000 were work-loss days for currently employed persons 17 years of age and over, and 11,894,000 were school-loss days for children 6-16 years of age.

#### Sex, Age, and Residence

In accordance with a higher rate of injury among males, the number of all types of disability days due to injury per 100 population was signifi-/ cantly higher for males than for females. The rate of disability increased consistently with age, ranging from 61.4 days of restricted activity per 100 population 0-5 years to 608.1 per 100 population 65 years and over (fig. 1). This general pattern of increased disability with advancing age was present for both males and females (tables 1, 2, and 3).





Except for bed disability in rural-nonfarm areas, the rate of all types of disability due to injury was higher for males than for females in all areas of residence. However, the number of disability days per 100 males showed an inverse relationship to population density, with the highest rate of disability in rural-farm areas, while for females this pattern was reversed with higher rates in urban and rural-nonfarm areas. Among males the number of restricted-activity and workloss days per 100 population was particularly high for those aged 45-64 years residing in ruralfarm areas. The higher rate of bed disability in rural-nonfarm areas for females was largely due to the amount of bed disability for females 65 years of age and over.

#### Geographic Region

Rates of restricted activity, bed disability, and work loss were higher in the West than in any other geographic region (fig. 2). The number of restricted-activity days per 100 population was higher for males than for females in each of the four regions. The greatest sex differential was found in the South with significant differences present in all age intervals among those 17 years and older. In the West region, the rate of restricted activity was high for both males and fe-



Figure 2. Number of restricted-activity and bed-disability days due to injury per 100 population, and number of work-loss days per 100 currently employed persons--17+, by geographic region.

males, with the large amount of disability among those under 45 years responsible for the high rate for males, while the rate for females was due to the frequency of disability among persons 45 years and over (table 4).

The rate of bed disability in the regions followed essentially the same pattern as the restricted activity, with the exception of a higher rate of bed disability for females than for males in the West (table 5). However, differences between males and females in the rates of bed disability due to injury lacked the degree of statistical significance found in differences in restrictedactivity rates.

Work-loss days due to injury were reported more frequently for men than for women in each geographic region. Only in the North Central and South regions, however, where the number of work-loss days per 100 population for females was less than half that for males, was the sex differential significant. In these two regions, the rate of work-loss due to injury for males was consistently higher than that for females in all age intervals shown in table 6. This consistency may reflect the high rate of disability among males residing in rural-farm areas, since the North Central and South regions have a higher proportion of rural-farm residents than are found in the Northeast and the West regions of the country.

#### Family Income

The rate of disability days for injuries is inversely related to the amount of family income (tables 7,8,9). This is partly due to the population composition of the income groups. As shown in table B, approximately 24 percent of the persons with family income of less than \$2,000 were 65 years of age or older—the age group with the highest rate of disability resulting from injury. In the family income interval, \$2,000-3,999, about 11 percent were 65 years and older, and among persons with family income \$4,000 and over, only 4 percent were in this age group.

Except for bed-disability days for family income groups under \$2,000 and \$4,000-6,999, the rate of disability due to injury was significantly higher for males than for females in all familyincome groups for all types of disability. In general, the pattern of increased disability with advancing age is apparent.

#### Race

Among persons under 25 years of age, the number of restricted-activity days due to injury per 100 population was higher among white than among nonwhite persons; however, for persons 25 years and over, the rates for the nonwhite were much higher in all age intervals than those

		Family income							
		Under \$2,000	\$2,000- 3,999	\$4,000- 6,999	\$7,000+				
			Per	cent					
Percentage of per	sons-65+ years	24	11	4	4				
Percentage of dis due to injury am 65+ years: Restricted-acti Bed-disability Work-loss days-	ability days ong persons- vity days days	38 36 17	22 17 13	11 11 4	9 • 13 4				

Table B. Percentage of persons 65 years or older, and percentage of disability days for persons 65 years or older, by family income: United States, July 1959-June 1961

for the white population (table 10). This reversal in the rates by age group resulted in approximately the same rate for all ages in the two race groups. The number of bed-disability days due to injury per 100 population and work-loss days per 100 currently employed population was significantly higher among the nonwhite than among the white population. This higher rate of bed disability and of work loss among the nonwhite population was consistent for all of the age intervals shown in table 10.

#### Usual Activity Status

Disability data shown in table 11 by usual activity status are limited to persons 17 years and older, because information on restricted-activity and bed-disability days associated with injury for preschool and school children is the same as shown in the preceding tables for the age groups 0-5 and 6-16 years.

The rates of restricted activity and bed disability due to injury are lower for persons who are usually working or keeping house than for retired persons, because they are heavily weighted by the lower rate of disability for persons 17-44 years included in these groups. The rate of disability is relatively high among persons 17 years and over in the "other" activity status group because included in this category are persons who are unable to work or keep house because of an injury or an impairment due to injury.

Work loss due to injury shown in table 11 for persons keeping house represents time lost from work for women who were employed at some time during the two weeks prior to interview, but who described their usual status during the previous 12 months as keeping house. Women in this category are usually part-time and seasonal workers. Rates of work loss due to injury were lower for these persons, not only because the group is restricted to women, who generally have a low rate of injury, but also because this particular group was not exposed to the risk of losing time from work to the same degree as persons who worked full time. Furthermore, they may have had more flexibility in adjusting their employment to periods of time when they were not disabled.

Place of Accident

. ÷.2

ŝ.

Injuries occurring in the home, the street and highway, and industrial places were responsible for about 353,660,000 restricted-activity days, 77 percent of the total 459,963,000 restricted-activity days due to injury (table 12). Among males, injuries sustained in industrial places accounted for the highest rate of restricted-activity days. Among females, about half of the restricted-activity days were associated with accidents occurring in the home.

Injuries in the street and highway, largely related to motor vehicle accidents, accounted for the highest rate of bed disability among males. As in the case of restricted-activity days, about half of the bed-disability days due to injury among females resulted from injuries in the home. Except for work-loss days due to injuries occurring in the home or in the street and highway, the rate of work loss was higher for males than for females in all of the "place of accident" categories shown in table 12. Injuries occurring in industrial places accounted for about a third of the work loss among males.

#### Type of Accident

. . . .

Falls were the leading cause of disability due to injury with 38 percent of the restrictedactivity and bed-disability days for injuries attributed to falls on stairs, steps, or from a height, and all other types of falls. About 30 percent of the work-loss days were associated with falls (table 13). The percentage of work loss is lower than the proportion of restricted-activity and bed-disability days due to falls, because work loss is restricted to currently employed persons, a population group composed chiefly of persons 17-64 years with a much lower rate of injury associated with falls than children and persons 65 years and older (see table 2, Series B, No. 37).

Of the 459,963,000 days of restricted activity associated with injuries, 86,575,000 days (18.8 percent) were due to injuries sustained in moving motor vehicle accidents, Approximately 22,7 percent of the total bed-disability days and 20.1 percent of the work-loss days were due to injury in moving motor vehicle accidents. From estimates abstracted from Series B. No. 37 and shown in figure 3, only 6.4 percent of the persons injured were involved in moving motor vehicle accidents. This discrepancy, in the comparatively low incidence of injury due to moving motor vehicle accidents and the amount of associated disability emphasizes the high proportion of moving motor vehicle accidents that result in disabling injury or jina shikala ƙasarta impairment.

It is also apparent from figure 3 that moving motor vehicle accidents and falls—types of acci-

الم مع الدينة " ما اليام اليام الم اليام من المراجع الم المراجع الم المراجع . الم مع مدينة " ما اليام اليام اليام من المراجع الم الم من الم الم



Figure 3. Percent distribution of persons injured and of disability days due to injury, by type of accident.

dents that are leading causes of disability associated with injury—account for only a third of the total persons injured, but are responsible for 56.4 percent of the restricted-activity days, 60.6 percent of the bed-disability days, and 49.3 percent of the work-loss days associated with injury.

The effects of injury on the individual as the result of moving motor vehicle accidents and from falls are shown in table C in terms of disability days per person injured. Persons injured in moving motor vehicle accidents had on the average 30.0 restricted-activity days, 8.9 bed-dis-

ability days, and 5.8 work-loss days. When the disability resulting from the two types of falls is combined, rates per person injured are roughly equal to those for moving motor vehicle injuries.

The appreciable amount of restricted activity and work loss, with comparatively little bed disability, due to injury caused by "one-time lifting or exertion" was probably the result of back conditions, muscle strains, and similar conditions causing a person to reduce his usual activities or to remain away from work but not confining him to bed.

#### School-Loss Days Due to Injury

In the National Health Survey, data on days lost from school are collected only for persons 6-16 years of age, defined on the basis of age as the school population. From data collected during the period July 1959-June 1961, it is estimated that 11,894,000 days per year were lost from school because of injury to children in this age group.

Consistent with the higher rate of injury among males in the school population (see table 9, Series B, No. 37), the number of school-loss days

Table	C.	Average	annual	number	of	disal	bility	days	and	numb	oer o	f di	lsability	days	per
year	pei	r person	injured	i result	ing	from	types	of	accide	ents	that	are	leading	causes	of
disa	bil	ity: Uni	ited Sta	ites, Ju	<b>1y</b> :	1959	June 19	961					_	•	

	Т	ype of accident	
	Moving motor vehicle	Falls on stairs, steps, or from a height	All other falls
Number of persons injured in thousands	2,890	4,305	7,762
Number of disability days in thousands: Restricted-activity days Bed-disability days Work-loss days	86,575 25,724 16,861	74,863 19,414 11,324	97,907 23,560 13,130
Number of disability days per year per person injured: Restricted-activity days Bed-disability days Work-loss days	30.0 8.9 5.8	17.4 4.5 2.6	12.6 3.0 1.7

6

due to injury per 100 population per year was also higher for males than for females. This sex differential, shown in table 14, was apparent when the data were considered by area of residence, geographic region, and amount of family income.

The rate of school loss due to injury was about the same in urban, rural-nonfarm, and rural-farm areas. By geographic region, school loss associated with injury was significantly higher in the South than in the Northeast and North Central areas. The rate in the South was somewhat higher than that in the West, but this difference was within the limits of sampling error (fig. 4).

Children living in families with income less than \$2,000 had more school-loss days due to injury per 100 children per year than did those living in other known income categories.

As previously mentioned, estimates of the number and rate of the injuries responsible for the disability shown in this report are available in considerable detail in Series B, No. 37. However, for the convenience of the reader, table 15, showing the number of persons injured by age cross-tabulated with a number of demographic characteristics, has been included in this report.

Population data in tables 16 and 17 are estimates of the total civilian, noninstitutional population appropriate for computing rates of restricted-activity and bed-disability days due to injury. Estimates shown for persons 6-16 years of age are used to compute the rate of school-loss days due to injury. Tables 18 and 19 present estimates for the currently employed population, defined as persons 17 years and older who worked or had a iob or business during the two-

-1



Figure 4. Number of school-loss days due to injury per 100 population 6-16 years, by residence, region, and family income.

week period prior to the week of interview. These estimates are appropriate for computing rates of work-loss days due to injury.

## DETAILED TABLES

			Page
		DISABILITY DUE TO INJURY, BY RESIDENCE	
Table.	1.	Average annual number of restricted-activity days and number of restricted-ac- tivity days per 100 population per year due to injury, by residence, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961	10
	2.	Average annual number of bed-disability days and number of bed-disability days per 100 population per year due to injury, by residence, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961	11
	3.	Average annual number of work-loss days and number of work-loss days per 100 currently employed persons per year due to injury, by residence, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961	12
		DISABILITY DUE TO INJURY, BY GEOGRAPHIC REGION	
	4.	Average annual number of restricted-activity days and number of restricted-ac- tivity days per 100 population per year due to injury, by geographic region, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961	13
	5.	Average annual number of bed-disability days and number of bed-disability days per 100 population per year due to injury, by geographic region, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961	14
	6.	Average annual number of work-loss days and number of work-loss days per 100 currently employed persons per year due to injury, by geographic region, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961	15
		DISABILITY DUE TO INJURY, BY FAMILY INCOME	
	7.	Average annual number of restricted-activity days and number of restricted-ac- tivity days per 100 population per year due to injury, by family income, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961	) <sup>'</sup> 16
	8.	Average annual number of bed-disability days and number of bed-disability days per 100 population per year due to injury, by family income, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961	17
	9.	Average annual number of work-loss days and number of work-loss days per 100 currently employed persons per year due to injury, by family income, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961	18
	DIŞA	BILITY DUE TO INJURY, BY RACE, USUAL ACTIVITY STATUS, PLACE AND TYPE OF ACCIDENT	
	10.	Average annual number of disability days and number of disability days per 100 population per year due to injury, by race and age: United States, July 1959-June 1961	19
	11.	Average annual number of disability days and number of disability days per 100 population per year due to injury, by usual activity status and age: United States, July 1959-June 1961	20
	12.	Average annual number of disability days and number of disability days per 100 population per year due to injury, by sex and place of accident: United States, July 1959-June 1961	21

8

### DISABILITY DUE TO INJURY, BY RACE, USUAL ACTIVITY STATUS, PLACE AND TYPE OF ACCIDENT-Con.

Table	13.	Average annual number of disability days and number of disability days per 100 population per year due to injury, by detailed type of accident: United States, July 1959-June 1961	22
	14.	Average annual number of school-loss days and number of school-loss days per 100 population (6-16 years) per year due to injury, by demographic character- istics and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961	23
		PERSONS INJURED AND POPULATION DATA	
	15.	Average annual number of persons injured by demographic characteristics and age: United States, July 1959-June 1961	24
	16.	Population used in obtaining rates shown in this publication, by sex, age, residence, and geographic region: United States, July 1959-June 1961	25
	17.	Population used in obtaining rates shown in this publication, by family in- come, sex, race, usual activity status, and age: United States, July 1959-June 1961	26
	18.	Population for currently employed persons used in obtaining rates for work- loss days shown in this publication, by sex, age, residence, and geographic region: United States, July 1959-June 1961	27
	19.	Population for currently employed persons used in obtaining rates for work- loss days shown in this publication, by family income, sex, race, usual activ- ity status, and age: United States, July 1959-June 1961	28

# Table 1. Average annual number of restricted-activity days and number of restricted-activity days per 100 population per year due to injury, by residence, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

Residence and age	Both sexes	Male	Female	Both sexes	Male	Female		
<u>All areas</u>	Avera strict i	Average number of re- stricted-activity days in thousands			Number of restricted- activity days per 100 popu- lation per year			
All ages	459,963	249,835	210,129	260.9	291.3	232.1		
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	14,768 51,198 34,171 122,717 143,858 93,252	7,751 32,669 22,398 73,789 71,267 41,961	7,016 18,529 11,773 48,928 72,591 51,291	61.4 135.3 193.7 270.2 399.7 608.1	63.3 169.2 273.0 339.3 410.5 608.3	59.4 100.0 124.7 206.7 389.7 608.0		
Urban								
All ages	272,958	140,327	132,631	257.9	277.7	239.8		
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	9,731 29,083 19,543 74,930 87,136 52,535	5,196 19,046 12,612 44,231 38,786 20,456	4,535 10,037 6,931 30,699 48,350 32,079	71.7 141.0 174.1 275.3 375.9 523.4	75.1 182.7 245.2 341.7 359.0 476.4	68.2 98.4 114.0 215.1 390.7 558.5		
Rural nonfarm								
All ages	126,729	71,695	55,034	257.7	295.4	220.9		
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	3,912 15,734 10,050 35,367 33,220 28,446	1,706 9,793 6,977 21,633 17,568 14,017	2,206 5,942 3,073 13,734 15,652 14,428	50.5 133.8 232.9 258.9 401.2 834.2	43.5 .161.7 358.9 329.1 420.6 876.6	57.6 104.1 129.6 193.7 381.4 796.7		
<u>Rural farm</u>								
All ages	60,275	37,813	22,463	283.3	344.5	218.0		
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	1,124 6,381 4,578 12,419 23,502 12,270	849 3,831 2,808 7,924 14,913 7,487	(*) 2,550 1,770 4,495 8,589 4,784	40.8 116.8 217.7 273.2 519.0 650.6	60.0 135.4 251.6 355.8 626.9 744.2	(*) 96.9 179.3 193.9 399.7 543.6		

1

Table 2. Average annual number of bed-disability days and number of bed-disability days per 100 population per year due to injury, by residence, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

Residence and age	Both sexes	Male	Female	Both sexes	Male	Female
<u>All areas</u>	Average ability	number of days in t	bed-dis- housands	Number days p	of bed-dis er 100 pop per year	ability ulation
All ages	113,539	58,848	54,692	64.4	68.6	60.4
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	6,540 11,764 6,026 31,067 35,586 22,557	3,175 6,978 3,701 18,425 17,601 8,968	3,365 4,787 2,325 12,641 17,985 13,589	27.2 31.1 34.2 68.4 98.9 147.1	25.9 36.1 45.1 84.7 101.4 130.0	25.5 25.8 24.6 53.4 96.5 161.1
<u>Urban</u>			1			
All ages	66,517	34,283	32,234	62.8	. 67.8	58.3
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	3,948 6,575 3,559 19,450 21,596 11,389	2,056 4,168 2,311 11,421 10,550 3,777	1,892 2,407 1,248 8,029 11,046 7,612	29.1 31.9 31.7 71.5 93.2 113.5	29.7 40.0 44.9 88.2 97.6 88.0	28.5 23.6 20.5 56.3 89.3 132.5
<u>Rural nonfarm</u>						
All ages	32,810	15,935	16,876	66.7	65.7	67.7
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	2,326 3,392 1,743 8,521 9,088 7,741	869 1,800 882 4,760 4,754 2,870	1,457 1,592 861 3,761 4,334 4,871	30.0 28.8 40.4 62.4 109.7 227.0	22.2 29.7 45.4 72.4 113.8 179.5	38.0 27.9 36.3 53.1 105.6 269.0
<u>Rural farm</u>						
All ages	14,212	8,630	5,582	66.8	78.6	54.2
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	(*) 1,797 725 3,096 4,902 3,426	(*) 1,010 508 2,245 2,297 2,321	(*) 788 (*) 851 2,605 1,105	(*) 32.9 34.5 68.1 108.3 181.7	(*) 35.7 45.5 100.8 96.6 230.7	(*) 30.0 (*) 36.7 121.2 125.6

П

Table 3. Average annual number of work-loss days and number of work-loss days per 100 currently employed persons per year due to injury, by residence, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961

Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix 1. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

Residence and age	Both sexes	Male	Female	Both sexes	Male	Female
<u>All areas</u>	Average day	number of s in thous	work-loss ands	Number of 100 cu per	work-loss rrently en sons per y	days per ployed ear
All ages-17+	83,773	64,112	19,661	125.5	144.8	87.4
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	7,084 36,239 33,500 6,950	6,277 29,603 23,744 4,487	807 6,636 9,756 2,463	72.1 120.9 141.0 215.9	108.8 143.7 151.5 201.1	19.9 70.8 120.7 249.3
Urban						·
All ages-17+	52,525	37,480	15,045	123.6	139.2	96.6
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	4,135 22,114 21,865 4,412	3,501 17,438 14,335 2,205	634 4,675 7,529 2,207	64.7 120.3 140.0 208.6	98.3 142.9 146.2 162.6	22.4 75.8 129.5 290.8
All ages-17+	20,944	17,676	3,268	123.3	150.1	62.7
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+ <u>Rural farm</u>	2,148 10,888 6,264 1,644	2,014 9,188 5,086 1,388	(*) 1,700 1,178 (*)	95.3 123.9 116.9 277.7	147.8 146.4 137.0 324.3	(*) 67.8 71.6 (*)
All ages-17+	10,304	8,956	1,348	141.6	161.0	78.6
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	801 3,238 5,371 895	762 2,977 4,322 895	(*) (*) 1,048 (*)	67.7 115.2 193.6 175.1	90.1 140.6 200.7 199.8	(*) (*) 168.5 (*)

-

# Table 4. Average annual number of restricted-activity days and number of restricted-activity days per 100 population per year due to injury, by geographic region, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961

Data are based on household in terviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

Geographic region and age	Both sexes	Male	Female	Both sexes	Male	Female	
<u>All regions</u>	Avera strict i	Average number of re- stricted-activity days in thousands		Numbe activity lat	Number of restricted- activity days per 100 popu- lation per year		
All ages	459,963	249,835	210,129	260.9	291.3	232.1	
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	14,768 51,198 34,171 122,717 143,858 93,252	7,751 32,669 22,398 73,789 71,267 41,961	7,016 18,529 11,773 48,928 72,591 51,291	61.4 135.3 193.7 270.2 399.7 608.1	63.3 169.2 273.0 339.3 410.5 608.3	59.4 100.0 124.7 206.7 389.7 608.0	
Northeast					÷		
All ages	104,027	55,685	48,342	227.7	252.5	204.5	
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	3,372 11,989 5,906 30,729 31,419 20,612	1,510 8,591 3,815 18,114 13,694 9,961	1,862 3,398 2,091 12,615 17,725 10,651	59.0 133.3 135.7 250.2 312.9 478.9	51.5 187.3 189.3 308.0 288.7 525.9	66.8 77.1 89.5 197.1 334.6 442.0	
North Central							
All ages	115,915	62,296	53,619	228.9	248.4	209.9	
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	4,760 13,533 10,498 29,891 32,053 25,180	2,856 8,911 6,304 17,664 15,893 10,668	1,904 4,622 4,194 12,227 16,161 14,511	66.4 125.5 211.3 231.8 314.3 545.1	78.2 161.4 258.5 279.8 315.4 504.2	54.2 87.9 165.8 185.8 313.2 579.7	
South	i .						
All ages	149,314	86,904	62,410	280.7	339.2	226.4	
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	3,876 16,726 10,139 38,149 48,983 31,442	2,053 9,657 7,545 24,121 27,312 16,215	1,823 7,069 2,594 14,028 21,670 15,226	52.7 136.9 177.5 289.5 466.9 740.7	54.8 154.9 291.3 389.6 549.0 858.8	50.5 118.2 83.1 200.8 392.8 646.0	
West					· ·		
All ages	90,707	44,950	45,757	338.6	345.2	332.4	
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	2,759 8,950 7,628 23,947 31,404 16,018	1,332 5,510 4,733 13,890 14,369 5,116	1,427 3,441 2,895 10,057 17,035 10,902	72.1 152.9 291.7 338.7 597.5 739.9	69.1 185.6 408.0 413.0 552.0 511.6	75.1 119.3 199.1 271.2 642.1 935.8	

# Table 5. Average annual number of bed-disability days and number of bed-disability days per 100 population per year due to injury, by geographic region, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961

Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

Geographic region and age	Both sexes	Male	Female	Both sexes	Male	Female
All regions	Average ability	number of days in t	bed-dis- housands	Number days p	of bed-dis er 100 pop per year	ability ulation
All ages	113,539	58,848	54,692	64.4	68.6	60.4
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	6,540 11,764 6,026 31,067 35,586 22,557	3,175 6,978 3,701 18,425 17,601 8,968	3,365 4,787 2,325 12,641 17,985 13,589	27.2 31.1 34.2 68.4 98.9 147.1	25.9 36.1 45.1 84.7 101.4 130.0	25.5 25.8 24.6 53.4 96.5 161.1
Northeast						
All ages	21,076	11,741	9,336	46.1	<b>53.2</b>	39.5
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	973 2,011 1,585 6,189 6,316 4,002	513 1,221 1,168 3,674 3,058 2,107	(*) 790 (*) 2,515 3,258 1,895	17.0 22.4 36.4 50.4 62.9 93.0	17.5 26.6 58.0 62.5 64.5 111.2	(*) 17.9 (*) 39.3 61.5 78.6
North Central						
All ages	27,167	14,266	12,901	53.7	56.9	50.5
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	2,342 3,649 1,943 6,816 6,799 5,619	1,384 2,233 1,504 4,054 2,605 2,486	957 1,416 (*) 2,762 4,195 3,133	32.7 33.8 39.1 52.9 66.7 121.6	37.9 40.4 61.7 64.2 51.7 117.5	27.2 26.9 (*) 42.0 81.3 125.2
South					-	
All ages	41,389	22,516	18,873	77.8	87.9	68.5
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	1,743 4,375 1,251 11,132 14,218 8,671	943 2,291 589 6,824 7,978 3,890	800 2,084 661 4,308 6,240 4,780	23.7 35.8 21.9 84.5 135.5 204.3	25.2 36.7 22.7 110.2 160.4 206.0	22.2 34.8 21.2 61.7 113.1 202.8
West			1			
All ages	23,907	10,325	13,583	89.2	79.3	98.7
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	1,482 1,729 1,249 6,929 8,253 4,265	(*) 1,232 (*) 3,873 3,960 (*)	1,148 (*) 808 3,056 4,293 3,781	38.7 29.5 47.8 98.0 157.0 197.0	(*) 41.5 (*) 115.2 152.1 (*)	60.4 (*) 55.6 82.4 161.8 324.5

.14

Table 6. Average annual number of work-loss days and number of work-loss days per 100 currently employed persons per year due to injury, by geographic region, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

Geographic region and age	Both sexes	Male	Female	Both sexes	Male	Female	
All regions	Average day	number of s in thous	work-loss ands	Number of work-loss days per 100 currently employed persons per year			
All ages-17+	83,773	64,112	19,661	125.5	144.8	87.4	
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	7,084 36,239 33,500 6,950	6,277 29,603 23,744 4,487	807 6,636 9,756 2,463	72.1 120.9 141.0 215.9	108.8 143.7 151.5 201.1	19.9 70.8 120.7 249.3	
Northeast							
All ages-17+	20,784	14,526	6,259	114.1	122.4	98.5	
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	1,448 9,595 6,873 2,869	1,106 7,348 4,521 1,551	(*) 2,247 2,352 1,318	58.4 119.1 101.0 326.4	82.2 132.2 103.6 258.1	(*) 89.9 96.3 475.8	
North Central			÷				
All ages-17+	22,489	18,709	3,780	118.1	142.3	64.2	
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	2,229 9,618 8,642 2,000	2,170 8,209 6,621 1,708	(*) 1,408 2,021 (*)	78.6 114.2 128.1 192.9	126.7 135.3 142.6 235.3	(*) 59.8 96.1 (*)	
South							
All ages-17+	24,518	19,209	5,309	126.0	152.2	77.6	
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	2,340 10,444 10,628 1,106	2,122 8,419 7,757 912	(*) 2,025 2,871 (*)	75.9 118.2 159.6 125.7	114.1 145.2 178.4 149.0	(*) 66.7 124.3 (*)	
West							
All ages-17+	15,982	11,668	4,313	159.1	175.9	126.4	
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	1,067 6,583 7,357 975	879 5,627 4,845 (*)	(*) 956 2,512 659	74.7 141.6 207.6 230.5	102.9 177.5 209.2 (*)	(*) 64.6 204.7 503.1	

Table 7. Average annual number of restricted-activity days and number of restricted-activity days per 100 population per year due to injury, by family income, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961 [Data are based on howsehold interviews of the civilian population interview design general available for a state of the reliance of the civilian population.

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

Family income and age	Both sexes	Male	Female	Both sexes	<sup>-</sup> Male	Female
<u>All incomes</u>	Average n activit	umber of re y days in t	stricted- housands	Number of days per	restricted 100 popula year	-activity tion per
All ages	459,963	249,835	210,129	260.9	291.3	232.1
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	14,768 51,198 34,171 122,717 143,858 93,252	7,751 32,669 22,398 73,789 71,267 41,961	7,016 18,529 11,773 48,928 72,591 51,291	61.4 135.3 193.7 270.2 399.7 608.1	63.3 169.2 273.0 339.3 410.5 608.3	59.4 100.0 124.7 206.7 389.7 608.0
<u>Under \$2,000</u>	114, 134	59 560	54 574	472 8	545 7	412 7
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	1,370 8,006 3,942 18,547 38,971 43,298	702 4,605 2,650 12,246 20,280 19,079	669 3,401 1,292 6,301 18,691 24,220	472.8 52.3 193.4 138.9 502.6 760.9 755.8	53.4 53.4 218.1 188.6 745.3 1,004.0 788.4	51.2 167.6 90.2 308.0 602.4 731.9
\$ <u>2,000-3,999</u> All ages	100,323	56,972	43,351	288.0	. 343.0	237.9
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	2,914 9,245 11,066 26,777 28,557 21,764	1,718 5,481 6,679 16,949 14,577 11,567	1,196 3,764 4,387 9,828 13,980 10,197	56.8 129.4 276.7 343.2 407.7 579.8	66.2 150.7 374.8 466.0 469.0 623.9	47.2 107.2 197.8 236.0 358.8 537.0
\$ <u>4,000-6,999</u>	130 168	68 989	61 179	210 7	226.2	107 3
0-5 6-16 17-24 25-44 45-64 65 <del>1</del>	7,520 16,321 9,163 44,602 37,830 14,732	3,584 10,107 5,484 25,278 19,555 4,980	3,937 6,214 3,679 19,324 18,275 9,752	74.2 115.9 160.4 243.8 343.7 578.0	68.8 140.3 216.0 282.2 345.8 411.6	79.9 90.4 115.9 206.9 341.3 728.3
\$ <u>7,000+</u>	86 105	49 201	27 004	102 4	215 7	160.1
0-5         6-16         17-24         25-44         45-64         65+	2,463 14,399 7,243 24,572 29,846 7,673	48,291 1,608 10,180 5,308 14,156 13,147 3,892	37,904 856 4,219 1,934 10,416 16,698 3,781	48.2 138.1 181.2 185.1 296.0 400.9	62.4 192.3 270.3 221.5 248.9 444.3	169.1 33.8 82.3 95.1 151.3 347.7 364.3
Unknown						
All ages 0-5 6-16	29,142 500 3,226 2,758 8,219 8,654	16,022 (*) 2,296 2,276 5,160 3,707	13,120 (*) 930 (*) 3,060 4,947	271.1 46.7 156.5 251.0 348.4 312.3	314.7 (*) 215.8 442.8 462.8 285.8	231.8 (*) 93.2 (*) 246.2 335.8

Table 8. Average annual number of bed-disability days and number of bed-disability days per 100 population per year due to injury, by family income, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Family income and age	Both sexes	Male	– Female	Both sexes	Male ·	Female
<u>All incomes</u>	Average bility	number of b days in th	ed-disa- ousands	Number of per 100	bed-disabi population	lity days per year
All ages	113,539	58,848	54,692	64.4	68.6	60.4
0-5 6-16	6,540 11,764	3,175 6,978	3,365 4,787	27.2 31.1	25.9 36.1	28.5 25.8
25-44	6,026 31,067	3,701	2,325	34.2	45.1	24.6
45-64 65 <del>1</del>	35,586	8,968	17,985	98.9 147.1	130.0	96.5 161.1
<u>Under \$2,000</u>		•				
All ages	27,763	13,450	14,313	115.0	123.2	108.2
0-5	655	(*)	(*)	25.0	. (*)	(*)
6-16	1,863	750	• 1,113	45.0	35.5	54.9
	/8/		1 0 2 5	122.9	( <del>*</del> )   192.9	( <b>≭</b> )
45-64	9,449	4,486	4,963	184.5	222.1	159.9
65+	10,071	4,463	5,608	175.8	184.4	169.5
\$ <mark>2,000-3,999</mark>				-		
All ages	25,803	13,848	11,955	74.1	83.4	65.6
0 E	1, 140	716			27 6	· (4)
6-16	2 292	1 / 70	822	32 1	27.0	
17-24	2,752	1,629	1 124	68.8	91.4	50.7
25+44	7.412	4.577	2,835	- 95.0	125.8	68.1
45-64	7,817	3,977	3,840	111.6	128.0	98.6
65+	4,390	1,481	2,909	- 116.9	79.9	153.2
\$4,000-6,999						
All ages	34,495	17,553	16,942	55.8	57.0	54.6
0-5	3,612	1,520	2,092	35.6	29.2	42.5
6-16	4,296	2,474	1,822	30.5	34.3	26.5
17-24	1,663	1,169	(*)	29.1	46.0	(*)
25-44	10,921	6,420	4,501	59.7	71.7	48.2
43-04	10,179	4,688	5,491	92.5	82.9	102.6
03+	3,824	1,281	2,543	120.0	102.9	189.9
\$ <u>7,000+</u>						
All ages	17,449	10,392	./,05/	38.9	46.4	31.5
0-5	789	661	(*)	15.4	25.6	• (*)
6-16	2,324	1,630	694	22.3	30.8	13.5
17-24	. 650	(*)	(*)	16.3	· (*)	( <b>*)</b>
25-44	5,071	2,534	2,537	38.2	39.6	36.9
45-64	6,375	3,744	2,631	63.2	70.9	54.8
65+	2,241	1,568	6/2		179.0	64.7
Unknown		а		10 A A	• · ·	1. T.
All ages	8,029	3,604	4,426	74.7	70.8	78.2
0-5	(*)	(*)	(*)	(*).	(*)	(*)
6-16	990	654	(*)	48.0	61.5	(*)
17-24	(*)	(*)	(*)	(*)	(*)	(*)
25-44	2,725	1,891	834	115.5	169.6	67.1
45-64	1,766	706	1,060	63.7	54.4	72.0
<u>65+</u>	2,031	(*)	1,856	146.2	(*)	218.4

Table 9. Average annual number of work-loss days and number of work-loss days per 100 currently employed persons per year due to injury, by family income, age, and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

Family income and age	Both sexes	Male	Female	Both sexes	Male	Female
<u>All incomes</u>	Average day	number of s in thous	work-loss ands	Number of 100 cu per	work-loss rrently en sons per y	days per mployed rear
All ages-17+	83,773	64,112	19,661	125.5	144.8	87.4
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	7,084 36,239 33,500 6,950	6,277 29,603 23,744 4,487	807 6,636 9,756 2,463	72.1 120.9 141.0 215.9	108.8 143.7 151.5 201.1	19.9 70.8 120.7 249.3
<u>Under \$2,000</u>					* *	
All ages-17+	12,342	9,466	2,876	175.7	237.6	94.6
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	1,365 3,522 5,347 2,108	1,270 3,301 3,994 900	(*) (*) 1,353 1,208	101.6 161.1 208.1 228.4	158.2 255.1 293.2 171.8	(*) (*) 112.1 302.8
\$ <u>2,000-3,999</u>					-	
All ages-17+	16,925	13,302	3,623	137.1	170.2	80.0
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+ \$4,000-6,999	1,461 7,340 5,889 2,235	1,291 5,886 4,388 1,737	(*) 1,455 1,501 (*)	68.2 146.8 132.5 296.0	97.1 178.1 164.9 333.4	(*) 85.9 84.1 (*)
All ages-17+	28,853	21,369	7,484	121.9	130.1	103.3
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	1,695 14,284 11,781 1,093	1,480 11,031 8,306 552	(*) 3,253 3,474 542	52.4 118.8 152.4 161.0	78.3 127.1 155.5 106.6	(*) 97.1 145.5 334.6
\$ <u>7,000</u> +						
All ages-17+	18,736	14,208	4,529	95.8	107.3	71.7
17-24 25-44 45-64 65 <del>1</del> <u>Unknown</u>	1,477 7,743 8,800 716	1,150 6,736 5,822 500	(*) 1,007 2,979 (*)	58.7 84.1 121.0 127.4	82.3 107.3 113.8 113.1	(*) 34.4 138.3 (*)
All ages-17+	6,918	5,768	1,150	165.5	205.4	83.9
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	1,087 3,350 1,683 798	1,087 2,649 1,234 798	(*) 701 (*) (*)	183.6 215.9 96.9 266.0	308.8 254.2 103.9 353.1	(*) 137.5 (*) (*)

#### Table 10. Average annual number of disability days and number of disability days per 100 population per year due to injury, by race and age: United States, July 1959-June 1961

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

			Disabil	ity days		;
Race and age	Restricted- activity days	Bed- disability days	Work-loss days	Restricted- activity days	Bed- disability days	Work-loss days <sup>1</sup>
<u>All races</u>	Average n day	umber of dis s in thousan	ability ds	Number per 100	of disabilit population p	y days er year
All ages	459,963	113,539	83,773	260.9	64.4	125.5
0-5 6-16	14,768 51,198	6,540 11,764	•••	61.4 135.3	27.2 31.1	•••
17-24 25-44	34,171 122,717	6,026 31,067	7,084 36,239	193.7 270.2	34.2 68.4	72.1 120.9
45-64 65+	143,858 93,252	35,586 22,557	33,500 6,950	399.7 608.1	98.9 147.1	141.0 215.9
White						
All ages	408,314	96,080	72,266	261.5	. 61.5	121.3
0-5	12,724 46,447	5,421 10,141	•••	62.0 141.7	26.4 30.9	•••
17-24	30,766 105,370	4,750 25,040	5,690 30,584	200.0 260.0	30.9 61.8	66.0 115.4
45-64 65+	128,343 84,665	31,100 19,628	29,986 6,006	393.1 593.6	95.3 • 137.6	139.7 201.7
Nonwhite						
All ages	51,649	17,460	11,507	256.1	86.6	159.7
0-5 6-16	2,043 4,751	1,119 1,623	•••	57.8 93.9	31.7 32.1	
17-24 25-44	3,405 17,346	1,276 6,026	1,394 5,656	150.7 354.2	56.5 123.1	115.7 162.8
45-64 65+	15,515 8,587	4,486 2,929	3,513 944	464.1 801.0	134.2 273.2	153.7 390.1

 $^{1}$ The number of work-loss days per 100 population per year is based on the currently employed population.

.

#### Table 11. Average annual number of disability days and number of disability days per 100 population per year due to injury, by usual activity status and age: United States, July 1959-June 1961

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

	Disability days								
Usual activity status and age	Restricted- activity days	Bed- disability days	Work-loss days	Restricted- activity days	Bed- disability days	Work-loss days <sup>1</sup>			
All activities	Average n day	umber of dis s in thousan	ability ds	Number per 100	of disabilit population p	y days er year			
All ages-17+	393,998	95,235	83,773	344.4	. 83.3	125.5			
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	34,171 122,717 143,858 93,252	6,026 31,067 35,586 22,557	7,084 36,239 33,500 6,950	193.7 270.2 399.7 608.1	34.2 68.4 98.9 147.1	72.1 120.9 141.0 215.9			
Usually working	175 (00)	(0.077	70 / 71			10/ 0			
All ages-1/+	1/5,603	40,977	/3,4/1	284.7	66.4	124.9			
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	15,202 79,292 67,481 13,628	2,105 19,186 16,703 2,984	5,462 33,730 29,084 5,195	197.2 278.1 297.6 487.1	27.3 67.3 73.7 106.6	78.1 123.0 132.8 208.7			
Keeping house									
All ages-17+	110,437	22,906	2,693	301.3	62.5	65.5			
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	4,196 29,239 45,903 31,098	1,290 7,861 9,701 4,054	(*) 819 1,220 562	118.7 187.9 408.5 492.1	36.5 50.5 86.3 64.1	(*) 40.0 90.6 197.2			
Retired									
All ages-45+	44,054	13,533	635	710.9	218.4	143.7			
45-64 65+	8,402 35,652	3,159 10,373	(*) 596	1,112.8 655.2	418.4 190.6	(*) 164.2			
<u>Other</u>									
All ages-17+	63,904	17,820	6,974	648.9	181.0	204.2			
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	14,773 14,186 22,072 12,873	2,631 4,020 6,023 5,145	1,530 1,690 3,157 598	230.8 1,050.8 1,665.8 1,663.2	41.1 297.8 454.6 664.7	63.7 333.3 744.6 711.9			

<sup>1</sup>The number of work-loss days per 100 population per year is based on the currently employed population.

Table 12. Average annual number of disability days and number of disability days per 100 population per year due to injury, by sex and place of accident: United States, July 1959-June 1961

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

		Disability days									
Sex and place of accident	Restricted- activity days	Bed- disability days	Work-loss days	Restricted~ activity days	Bed- disability days	Work-loss days <sup>1</sup>					
<u>Both</u> sexes	Average n day	umber of dis s in thousan	ability ds	Number per 100	of disabilit population p	y days er year					
All places	459,963	113,539	83,773	260.9	64.4	125.5					
Home Street and highway Farm Industrial place School Place of recreation Other and unknown Male All places Home Street and highway Farm	162,860 114,117 17,408 76,683 19,396 14,645 54,853 249,835 249,835 57,467 54,220 14,091 66,190	40,893 32,222 3,415 16,022 3,741 2,198 15,049 58,848 13,066 16,267 2,868 13,378	17,111 21,824 3,637 24,593 1,633 2,097 12,879 64,112 11,056 14,249 3,491 22,044	92.4 64.7 9.9 43.5 11.0 8.3 31.1 291.3 67.0 63.2 16.2 16.2	23.2 18.3 1.9 9.1 2.1 1.2 8.5 68.6 15.2 19.0 3.3 15.6	25.6 32.7 5.4 36.8 2.4 3.1 19.3 144.8 25.0 32.2 7.9 49.8					
School Place of recreation	14,043 8,674 25,149	2,700 1,132	1,617 1,664	16.4 10.1	3.1 1.3	3.7 3.8					
Female All places	210,129	54,692	19,661	232.1	60.4	87.4					
Home	105,393 59,898 3,316 10,493 5,353 5,971 19,704	27,827 15,955 547 2,644 1,041 1,066 5,612	6,055 7,576 (*) 2,548 (*) (*) 2,888	116.4 66.2 3.7 11.6 5.9 6.6 21.8	30.7 17.6 0.6 2.9 1.1 1.2 6.2	26.9 33.7 (*) 11.3 (*) (*) 12.8					

<sup>1</sup>The number of work-loss days per 100 population per year is based on the currently employed population.

#### Table 13. Average annual number of disability days and number of disability days per 100 population per year due to injury, by detailed type of accident: United States, July 1959-June 1961

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

			Disabil	ity days		
Detailed type of accident	Restricted- activity days	Bed-dis- ability days	Work- loss days	Restricted- activity days	Bed-dis- ability days	Work- loss days <sup>1</sup>
	Average num days i	ber of dis n thousand	ability Is	Number of per 100 pop	disability ulation pe	days er year
Total persons injured	459,963	113,539	83,773	260.9	64.4	125.5
Moving motor vehicles	86,575	25,724	16,861	49.1	14.6	25.3
All other accidents	373, 388	87,816	66,912	211.8	49.8	100.2
<pre>Uncontrolled fire, explosion, or discharge of a firearm Nonmotor vehicle in motion Machinery, in operation Cutting or piercing instrument Foreign body in eye, windpipe, or other orifice Injury caused by animal or insect</pre>	15,144 7,525 12,232 10,489 3,854 5,872 74,863 97,907 20,623	3,910 1,205 1,538 2,080 1,647 1,304 19,414 23,560 5,167	2,917 778 4,166 2,337 1,193 1,440 11,324 13,130 2,930	8.6 4.3 6.9 5.9 2.2 3.3 42.5 55.5 11.7	2.2 0.7 0.9 1.2 0.9 0.7 11.0 13.4 2.9	4.4 1.2 6.2 3.5 1.8 2.2 17.0 19.7 4.4
Struck by moving object Handled or stepped on rough objects Caught in, pinched, or crushed between two objects	27,547 5,767 8,110	5,611 1,173 720	7,792 (*) 1,940	15.6 3.3 4.6	3.2 0.7 0.4	11.7 (*) 2.9
Came in contact with hot object or open flame One-time lifting or exertion Twisted or stumbled Therapeutic misadventure All other types of accidents	7,204 37,568 14,411 3,021 21,253	1,624 8,583 3,037 1,436 5,807	553 10,177 2,995 677 2,253	4.1 21.3 8.2 1.7 12.1	0.9 4.9 1.7 0.8 3.3	0.8 15.2 4.5 1.0 3.4

 $^{1}$ The number of work-loss days per 100 population per year is based on the currently employed population.

Table 14. Average annual number of school-loss days and number of school-loss days per 100 population (6-16 years) per year due to injury, by demographic characteristics and sex: United States, July 1959-June 1961

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

Characteristic	Both sexes	Male	Female	Both sexes	Male	Female	
	Average loss d	number of ays in tho	school- usands	Number of school-loss days per 100 population per year			
All persons-6-16	_11,894	7,571	4,323	31.4	39.2	23.3	
Residence			×.				
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	6,636 3,713 1,545	4,115 2,485 972	2,521 1,228 573	32.2 31.6 28.3	39.5 41.0 34.3	24.7 21.5 21.8	
Region							
Northeast North Central South West	2,413 2,742 4,991 1,749	1,605 1,896 2,968 1,102	808 846 2,022 647	26.8 25.4 40.9 29.9	35.0 34.3 47.6 37.1	18.3 16.1 33.8 22.4	
Family income							
Under \$2,000 \$2,000-3,999 \$4,000-6,999 \$7,000+ Unknown	2,360 2,142 3,905 2,335 1,151	1,415 1,258 2,253 1,705 940	945 884 1,652 630 (*)	57.0 30.0 27.7 22.4 55.8	67.0 34.6 31.3 32.2 88.3	46.6 25.2 24.0 12.3 (*)	

#### Table 15. Average annual number of persons injured<sup>1</sup> by demographic characteristics and age: United States, July 1959-June 1961

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

Characteristic	All ages	0-5	6-16	17-24	25-44	45-64	65+
······································	A	verage nu	mber of p	ersons in	jured in	thousands	
All persons	44,995	7,067	11,916	4,903	10,346	7,856	2,906
Male Female	25,835 19,160	3,758 3,308	7,314 4,602	3,364 1,540	6,132 4,214	4,099 3,757	1,167 1,739
Residence				-			
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm Region	26,729 13,147 5,119	4,177 2,279 610	6,778 3,912 1,227	3,124 1,227 552	5,897 3,195 1,254	4,939 1,824 1,093	1,814 710 382
Northeast North Central South West	10,623 13,172 12,935 8,265	1,499 2,318 2,084 1,166	3,003 3,574 3,009 2,329	1,104 1,461 1,329 1,010	2,479 2,818 3,175 1,875	1,828 2,270 2,360 1,398	710 732 978 486
Family income							
Under \$2,000 \$2,000-3,999 \$4,000-6,999 \$7,000+ Unknown	5,541 8,822 16,305 11,568 2,759	390 1,436 3,407 1,691 142	1,351 2,004 4,022 3,646 893	784 1,291 1,508 968 353	833 1,981 4,095 2,732 705	960 1,392 2,771 2,191 541	1,222 718 501 339 125
Race							
White Nonwhite	40,731 4,264	6,593 473	10,842 1,074	4,385 518	9,220 1,126	7,072 783	2,618 288
Usual activity status-17+							
Usually working-17+ Keeping house-17+ Retired-45+ Other-17+	15,642 6,662 1,187 2,520	••••	••••	2,445 589 1,870	7,108 2,907  332	5,338 2,211 164 143	751 956 1,023 176

<sup>1</sup>Includes only persons with injuries involving one or more days of restricted activity, or medical attention.

#### Table 16. Population used in obtaining rates shown in this publication, by sex, age, residence, and geographic region: United States, July 1959-June 1961

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

	A11		Residence		Geographic region			
Sex and age	persons	Urban	Rural nonfarm	Rural farm	North- east	North Central	South	West
Both sexes			Popul	ation in	thousar	ds		
All ages	176,302	105,845	49,181	21,276	45,691	50,629	53,194	26,789
0-5	24,065	13,564	7,748	2,753	5,718	7,168	7,351	3,828
6-16	37,846	20,622	11,763	5,461	8,996	10,780	12,217	5,853
17-24	17,645	11,226	4,316	2,103	4,351	4,969	5,711	2,615
25-44		27,215	13,663	4,545	12,281	12,893	13,178	7,071
45-64	35,989	23,180	8,281	4,528	10,041	10,199	10,492	5,256
65+	15,334	10,038	3,410	1,886	4,304	4,619	4,245	2,165
Male				1. A.				·
All ages	85,776	50,534	24,267	10,975	22,052	25,079	25,623	13,022
0-5	12,254	6,919	3,918	1,416	2,931	3,652	3,743	1,927
6-16	19,312	10,426	6,056	2,830	4,586	5,522	6,235	2,968
17-24	8,204	5,144	1,944	1,116	2,015	2,439	2,590	1,160
	21,747	12,946	6,574	2,227	5,881	6,312	6,192	3,363
45-64	17,361	10,805	4,177	2,379	4,744	5,039	4,975	2,603
65+	6,898	4,294	1,599	1,006	1,894	2,116	1,888	1,000
Female							·	· .
All ages	90,526	55,311	24,913	10,302	23,639	25,549	27,571	13,767
0-5	11,812	6,645	3,830	1,337	2,786	3,516	3,608	1,901
6-16	18,535	10,196	5,707	2,631	4,410	5,258	5,981	2,885
17-24	9,440	6,082	2,372	987	2,336	2,530	3,121	1,454
25-44	23,676	14,270	7,089	2,318	6,400	~6,581	6,986	3,709
45-64	18,628	12,375	4,104	2,149	5,297	5,160	5,517	2,653
65+	8,436	5,744	1,811	880	2,410	2,503	2,357	1,165

NOTE: For official population estimates for more general use, see Bureau of the Census reports on the civilian population of the United States, in Current Population Reports: Series P-20, P-25, and P-60.

# Table 17. Population used in obtaining rates shown in this publication, by family income, sex, race, usual activity status, and age: United States, July 1959-June 1961

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix 1. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

	testine and						
Family income, sex, race, and usual activity status	All ages	0-5	6-16	17-24	25-44	45-64	65+
Family income			Populati				
Both sexes	176,302	24,065	37,846	17,645	45,423	35,989	15,334
Under \$2,000 \$2,000-3,999 \$4,000-6,999 \$7,000+ Unknown	24,139 34,835 61,775 44,803 10,750	2,621 5,131 10,133 5,110 1,071	4,140 7,145 14,076 10,423 2,062	2,837 4,000 5,711 3,997 1,099	3,690 7,802 18,297 13,276 2,359	5,122 7,004 11,008 10,083 2,771	5,729 3,754 2,549 1,914 1,389
Male	85,776	12,254	19,312	8,204	21,747	17,361	6,898
Under \$2,000 \$2,000-3,999 \$4,000-6,999 \$7,000+ Unknown	10,915 16,611 30,773 22,386 5,091	1,315 2,595 5,206 2,577 561	2,111 3,636 7,205 5,295 1,064	1,405 1,782 2,539 1,964 514	1,643 3,637 8,959 6,392 1,115	2,020 3,108 5,655 5,282 1,297	2,420 1,854 1,210 876 539
Female	90,526	11,812	18,535	9,440	23,676	18,628	8,436
Under \$2,000 \$2,000-3,999 \$4,000-6,999 \$7,000+ Unknown	13,224 18,224 31,001 22,417 5,660	1,306 2,536 4,927 2,533 510	2,029 3,510 6,871 5,127 998	1,432 2,218 3,173 2,033 585	2,046 4,165 9,338 6,884 1,243	3,103 3,896 5,354 4,802 1,473	3,309 1,899 1,339 1,038 850
Race							
White Nonwhite	156,133 20,169	20,531 3,534	32,784 5,062	15,385 2,260	40,526 4,897	32,645 3,343	14,262 1,072
<u>Usual activity status</u>							
All persons-17+	114,391	····		17,645	45,423	35,989	15,334
Usually working-17+ Keeping house-17+ Retired-45+ Other-17+	61,690 36,656 6,197 9,848	•••	•••	7,710 3,534  6,400	28,509 15,564  1,350	22,672 11,237 755 1,325	2,798 6,320 5,441 774

NOTE: For official population estimates for more general use, see Bureau of the Census reports on the civilian population of the United States, in <u>Current Population Reports</u>: Series P-20, P-25, and P-60.

#### Table 18. Population for currently employed persons used in obtaining rates for work-loss days shown in this publication, by sex, age, residence, and geographic region: United States, July 1959-June 1961

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

Sor and ago		A11	R	esidence	·	Geographic region				
Sex and age	•	persons	Urban	Rural nonfarm	Rural farm	North- east	North Central	South	West	
<u>Both</u> sexes				Popul	ation i	n thousa	nds		· · ·	
All ages-17+		66,769	42,501	16,989	7,278	18,222	19,042	19,459	10,046	
17-24 25-44	: 	9,827 29,971	6,390 18,375	2,254 8,785	1,183 2,810	2,479 8,059	2,837 8,423	3,083 8,838	1,428 4,650	
45-64 65+		23,753 3,219	15,621 2,115	5,358 592	2,774 511	6,806 879	6,745 1,037	6,658 880	3,544 423	
Male	÷.,.			-						
All ages-17+		44,272	26,928	11,779	5,564	11,868	13,150	12,620	6,633	
17-24 25-44		5,771 20,599	3,563 12,204	1,363 6,277	846 2,118	1,345 5,560	1,713 6,069	1,859 5,800	854 3,170	
45-64 65+		15,671 2,231	9,806 1,356	3,713 428	2;153 448	4,363 601	4,643 726	4,349 612	2,316 292	
Female	s t							-		
All ages-17+		22,497	15,573	5,210	1,714	6,354	5,892	6,839	3,413	
17-24 25-44		4,056 9,372	2,827 6,171	892 <sup>°</sup> 2,508	337 692	1,134 2,500	1,124 2,354	1,223 3,038	574 1,480	
45-64 65 <del>1</del>	: 	8,082 988	5,815 759	1,645 165	622 64	2,443 277	2,102 311	2,309 268	1,227 131	

NOTE: For official population estimates for more general use, see Bureau of the Census reports on the civilian population of the United States, in <u>Current Population Reports</u>: Series P-20, P-25, and P-60; and Bureau of Labor Statistics monthly report, <u>Employment and Earnings</u>.

Ċ

.

Sec.

#### Table 19. Population for currently employed persons used in obtaining rates for work-loss days shown in this publication, by family income, sex, race, usual activity status, and age: United States, July 1959-June 1961

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

Family income, sex, race, and	All ages	17-24	25-44	45-64	65+
usual activity status	17+			-5 0-1	
Family income	·	Popul	ation in tho	usands	
Both sexes	66,769	9,827	29,971	23,753	3,219
Under \$2,000	7,023	1,343	2,186	2,570	<sup>*</sup> , 923
\$2,000-3,999	12,343	2,143	4,999	4,446	755
\$4,000-6,999	23,669	3,232	12,028	7,730	679
\$7,000+	19,555	2,516	9,205	7,272	562
Unknown	4,179	592	1,552	1,736	300
Male	44,272	5,771	20,599	15,671	2,231
Under \$2,000	3,984	803	1,294	1.362	524
\$2,000-3,999	7,817	1,330	3,305	2,661	521
\$4,000-6,999	16,427	1,889	8.678	5.343	518
\$7.000+	13,237	1,397	6,280	5,118	442
Unknown	2,808	352	1,042	1,188	226
Female	22,497	4,056	9,372	8,082	988
Under \$2,000	3,039	540	892	1,207	399
\$2,000-3,999	4,526	813	1,694	1,785	234
\$4,000-6,999	7,242	1,343	3,350	2,387	162
\$7,000+	6,318	1,119	2,926	2,154	120
Unknown	1,371	240	510	548	73
Race			~		
White	59 562	8 622	26 495	21 468	2 977
Nonwhite	7,207	1,205	3,475	2,285	242
Usual activity status					
All persons-17+	66,769	9,827	29,971	23,753	3,219
Usually working-17+	58,802	6,992	27,419	21,902	2,489
Keeping house-17+	4,109	432	2.046	1.347	285
Retired-45+	442		_,	-,	363
Other-17+	3,416	2,402	507	424	84

NOTE: For official population estimates for more general use, see Bureau of the Census reports on the civilian population of the United States, in <u>Current Population Reports</u>: Series P-20, P-25, and P-60; and Bureau of Labor Statistics monthly report. <u>Employment and Earnings</u>.

#### APPENDIX I

#### **Background of This Report**

ini. Sy vi

This report, <u>Disability Days Due to Injury</u>, is one of a series of statistical reports prepared by the U. S. National Health Survey. It is based on information collected in a continuing nationwide sample of households in the Health Interview Survey, a major aspect of the program.

The Health Interview Survey utilizes a questionnaire which, in addition to personal and demographic characteristics, obtains information on illnesses, injuries, chronic conditions and impairments, and other health topics. As data relating to each of these various broad topics are tabulated and analyzed, separate reports are issued which cover one or more of the specific topics. The present report is based on the consolidated sample for 104 weeks of interviewing ending June 1961.

The population covered by the sample for the Health Interview Survey is the civilian, noninstitutional population of the United States living at the time of the interview. The sample does not include members of the Armed Forces, U. S. nationals living in foreign countries, or crews of vessels. It should also be noted that the estimates shown do not represent a complete inventory of injuries for the specified calendar period since no adjustment has been made for persons who incurred injuries during the two-week-recall period but who died prior to the interview.

#### Statistical Design of the

#### Health Interview Survey:

General plan.—The sampling plan of the survey follows a multistage probability design which permits a continuous sampling of the civilian population of the United States. The first stage of this design consists of drawing a sample of 500 from the 1,900 geographically defined Primary Sampling Units (PSU's) into which the United States has been divided. A PSU is a county, a group of contiguous counties, or a Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area.

With no loss in general understanding, the remaining stages can be telescoped and treated in this discussion as an ultimate stage. Within PSU's, then, ultimate stage units called segments are defined, also geographically, in such a manner that each segment contains an expected six households in the sample. Each week a random sample of about 120 segments is drawn. In the approximately 700 households in those segments, household members are interviewed concerning factors related to health.

Since the household members interviewed each week are a representative sample of the population,

samples for successive weeks can be combined into larger samples. Thus the design permits both continuous measurement of characteristics of high incidence or prevalence in the population, and through the larger consolidated samples, more detailed analysis of less common characteristics and smaller categories. The continuous collection has administrative and operational advantages as well as technical assets, since it permits field work to be handled with an experienced, stable staff.

Sample size and geographic detail.—The national sample plan over the two-year period ending June 1961 included about 250,000 persons from 76,000 households. The over-all sample was designed in such a fashion that tabulations can be provided for each of the major geographic regions and for urban and rural sectors of the United States.

<u>Collection of data</u>.—The field operations for the household survey are performed by the Bureau of the Census under specifications established by the Public Health Service. In accordance with these specifications the Bureau of the Census designs and selects the sample; conducts the field interviewing, acting as the collecting agent for the Public Health Service; and edits and codes the questionnaires. Tabulations are prepared by the Public Health Service using the Bureau of the Census electronic computers.

Estimating methods.—Each statistic produced by the survey—for example, the number of bed disability days due to injury—is the result of two stages of ratio estimation. In the first of these, the factor is the ratio of the 1950 decennial population count to the 1950 estimated population in the U. S. National Health Survey's first-stage sample of PSU's. These factors are applied for some 50 color-residence classes.

Later, ratios of sample-produced estimates of the population to official Bureau of the Census figures for current population in about 60 age-sex-color classes are computed, and serve as second-stage factors for ratio estimating.

The effect of the ratio estimating process is to make the sample more closely representative of the population by age, sex, color, and residence, thus reducing sampling variance.

As noted, each week's sample represents the population living during that week and characteristics of that population. Consolidation of samples over a time period, say a calendar quarter, produces estimates of average characteristics of the U. S. population for that calendar quarter. Similarly, population data for a year are averages of the four quarterly figures.

For statistics measuring the number of occurrences during a specified time period, such as the number of bed-disability days due to injuries, a similar

computational procedure is used, but the statistics have a different interpretation. For these items, the questionnaire asks for the respondent's experience over the two calendar weeks prior to the week of interview. In such instances the estimated quarterly total for the statistic is simply 6.5 times the average twoweek estimate produced by the 13 successive samples taken during the period. The annual total is the sum of the four quarters. Thus, the experience of persons <u>interviewed during a year</u>—experience which actually occurred for each person in a two-calendar-week interval prior to week of interview—is treated as though it measured the total of such experience <u>during the year</u>. Such interpretation leads to no significant bias.

#### **General Qualifications**

<u>Nonresponse</u>.—Data were adjusted for nonresponse by a procedure which imputes to persons in a household which was not interviewed the characteristics of persons in households in the same segment which were interviewed. The total noninterview rate was 5 percent; 1 percent was refusal, and the remainder was primarily due to the failure to find any eligible household respondent after repeated trials.

The interview process.—The statistics presented in this report are based on replies secured in interviews of persons in the sampled households. Each person 17 years of age and over, available at the time of interview, was interviewed individually. Proxy respondents within the household were employed for children and for adults not available at the time of the interview, provided the respondent was closely related to the person about whom information was being obtained.

There are limitations to the accuracy of diagnostic and other information collected in household interviews. For diagnostic information, the household respondent can, at best, pass on to the interviewer only the information the physician has given to the family. For conditions not medically attended, diagnostic information is often no more than a description of symptoms. However, other facts, such as the number of disability days caused by the condition, can be obtained more accurately from household members than from any other source since only the persons concerned are in a position to report this information.

<u>Rounding of numbers</u>.—The original tabulations on which the data in this report are based show all estimates to the nearest whole unit. All consolidations were made from the original tabulations using the estimates to the nearest unit. In the final published tables the figures are rounded to the nearest thousand, although these are not necessarily accurate to that detail. Devised statistics, such as rates and percent distributions, are computed after the estimates on which these are based have been rounded to the nearest thousand.

<u>Population figures</u>.—Some of the published tables include population figures for specified categories. Except for certain over-all totals by age and sex, which are adjusted to independent estimates, these figures are based on the sample of households in the U. S. National Health Survey. These are given primarily to provide denominators for rate computation, and for this purpose are more appropriate for use with the accompanying measures of health characteristics than other population data that may be available. In some instances these will permit users to recombine published data into classes more suitable<sup>=</sup>to their specific needs. With the exception of the over-all totals by age and sex, mentioned above, the population figures differ from corresponding figures (which are derived from different sources) published in reports of the Bureau of the Census. For population data for general use, see the official estimates presented in Bureau of the Census reports in the P-20, P-25, and P-60 series.

#### **Reliability of Estimates**

Since the estimates are based on a sample, they will differ somewhat from the figures that would have been obtained if a complete census had been taken using the same schedules, instructions, and interviewing personnel and procedures. As in any survey, the results are also subject to measurement error.

The standard error is primarily a measure of sampling variability, that is, the variations that might occur by chance because only a sample of the population is surveyed. As calculated for this report, the standard error also reflects part of the variation which arises in the measurement process. It does not include estimates of any biases which might lie in the data. The chances are about 68 out of 100 that an estimate from the sample would differ from a complete census by less than the standard error. The chances are about 95 out of 100 that the difference would be less than twice the standard error and about 99 out of 100 that it would be less than 2½ times as large.

The relative standard error of an estimate is obtained by dividing the standard error of the estimate by the estimate itself, and is expressed as a percentage of the estimate. Included in this Appendix are charts from which the relative standard errors can be determined for estimates shown in the report. In order to derive relative errors which would be applicable to a wide variety of health statistics and which could be prepared at a moderate cost, a number of approximations were required. As a result, the charts provide an estimate of the approximate relative standard error rather than the precise error for any specific aggregate or percentage.

Three classes of statistics for the health survey are identified for purposes of estimating variances.

<u>Narrow range</u>.—This class consists of (1) statistics which estimate a population attribute, e.g., the number of persons in a particular income group, and (2) statistics for which the measure for a single individual for the period of reference is usually either 0 or 1, on occasion may take on the value 2, and very rarely, 3.

<u>Medium range</u>.—This class consists of other statistics for which the measure for a single individual for the period of reference will rarely lie outside the range 0 to 5.

<u>Wide range.</u>—This class consists of statistics for which the measure for a single individual for the period of reference frequently will range from 0 to a number in excess of 5, e.g., the number of days of bed disability experienced during the year. In addition to classifying variables according to whether they are narrow-, medium-, or wide-range, statistics in the survey are further defined as:

- Type A.-Statistics on prevalence, and incidence data for which the period of reference in the questionnaire is 12 months.
- Type B.—Incidence-type statistics for which the period of reference in the questionnaire is two weeks.

Only the charts on sampling error applicable to data contained in this report are presented.

<u>General rules for determining relative sampling</u> <u>errors.</u>—The "guide" on page 32, together with the following rules, will enable the reader to determine approximate relative standard errors from the charts for estimates presented in this report.

- Rule 1. Estimates of aggregates: Approximate relative standard errors of estimates of aggregates, such as the number of persons with a given characteristic, or the number of disability days due to injury are obtained from appropriate curves on page 33. The number of persons in the total U. S. population or in age-sex class of the total population is adjusted to official Bureau of the Census figures and is not subject to sampling error.
- Rule 2. Estimates of percentages in a percent distribution: Relative standard errors of percentages in a percent distribution of a total are obtained from appropriate curves on pages 34 and 35. For values which do not fall on one of the curves presented in the chart, visual interpolation will provide a satisfactory approximation.

- Rule 3. <u>Estimates of rates where the numerator</u> is a subclass of the denominator: (Not required for statistics presented in this report.)
- Rule 4. Estimates of rates where the numerator is not a subclass of the denominator: This rule applies where a unit of the numerator often occurs more than once for any one unit in the denominator. For example, in the computation of the number of days of bed disability due to injury per 100 persons per year, several of the days included in the numerator could be assigned to a person (one unit) in the denominator. Approximate relative standard errors for rates of this kind may be computed as follows:
  - (a) Where the denominator is the total U. S. population, or includes all persons in one or more of the age-sex groups of the total population, the relative error of the rate is equivalent to the relative error of the numerator which can be obtained directly from the appropriate chart.
  - (b) In other cases, obtain the relative standard error of the numerator and of the denominator from the appropriate curve. Square each of these relative errors, add the resulting values, and extract the square root of the sum. This procedure will result in an upper bound, and often will overstate the error.

Ine code shown below identifies the appropriate curve to be used in estimating the relative standard error of the statistic described. The four components of each code describe the statistic as follows: (1) A = aggregate, P = percentage; (2) the number of calendar quarters of data collection; (3) the type of the statistic as described on page 31; and (4) the range of the statistic as described on page 30.

: .

		Use:	
Statistic	Rule	Code on	page
Number of: Persons in the U. S. population, or total persons in one or more age-sex categories	Not subjec	t to sampling error	
Persons in any other population group	1	A8AN	33
Persons injured per year	1	A8BN	33
Disability days per year	1	A8BW	33
Percentage distribution of: Persons injured in a year	2	P8BN-M	34
Disability days in a year	2	P8BW	35
Rates for persons injured: Per 1,000 total U.S. population or per 1,000 persons in any age-sex group of the U.S. population	4(a)	A8BN	33
Per 1,000 persons in any other population group	4(ь)	Numer.: A8BN Denom.: A8AN	33
Number of disability days: Per 100 total U. S. population or per 100 persons in any age-sex group of the total U. S. population	4(a)	A8BW	33
Per 100 persons in any other population group	4(b)	Numer.: A8BW Denom.: A8AN	33
Per person injured	4(b)	Numer.: A8BW Denom.: A8BN	33



Relative standard errors for aggregates based on eight quarters of data collection for data of all types and ranges



Example of use of chart: An aggregate of 5,000,000 (on scale at bottom of chart) for a Narrow range type A statistic (code: A8AN) has a relative standard error of 1.9 percent, read from scale at left side of chart, or a standard error of 95,000 (1.9 percent of 5,000,000). For a Wide range type B statistic (code: A8BW), an aggregate of 10,000,000 has a relative error of 9.3 percent or a standard error of 930,000 (9.3 percent of 10,000,000).



Example of use of chart: An estimate of 20 percent (on scale at bottom of chart) based on an estimate of 10,000,000 has a relative standard error of 13.8 percent (read from scale at the left side of the chart), the point at which the curve for a base of 10,000,000 intersects the vertical line for 20 percent. The standard error in percentage points is equal to 20 percent X 13.8 percent or 2.8 percentage points.



Relative standard errors for percentages based on eight quarters of data collection for type B data, Wide range

Estimated percentage

Example of use of chart: An estimate of 20 percent (on scale at bottom of chart) based on an estimate of 10,000,000 has a relative standard error of 19.2 percent (read from scale at the left side of the chart), the point at which the curve for a base of 10,000,000 intersects the vertical line for 20 percent. The standard error in percentage points is equal to 20 percent X 19.2 percent or 3.8 percentage points.

#### APPENDIX II

#### DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS USED IN THIS REPORT

#### Terms Relating to Persons Injured

<u>Injury condition</u>.—An injury condition, or simply an injury, is a condition of the type that is classified to the nature of injury code numbers (N800-N999) in the International Classification of Diseases. In addition to fractures, lacerations, contusions, burns, and so forth, which are commonly thought of as injuries, this group of codes include: effects of exposure, such as sunburn; adverse reactions to immunizations and other medical procedures, and poisonings. Unless otherwise specified, the term injury is used to cover all of these.

Since a person may sustain more than one injury in a single accident, e.g., a broken leg and laceration of the scalp, the number of injury conditions may exceed the number of persons injured.

Statistics of acute injury conditions include only those injuries which involved at least one full day of restricted activity or medical attendance.

<u>Person injured</u>.—A person injured is one who has sustained one or more injuries in an accident or in some type of nonaccidental violence (see definition of "Injury condition" above). Each time a person is involved in an accident or in nonaccidental violence causing injury that results in at least one full day of restricted activity or medical attention, he is included in the statistics as a separate "person injured," hence, one person may be included more than once.

The number of persons injured is not equivalent to the number of "accidents" for several reasons: (1) the term "accident" as commonly used may not involve injury at all; (2) more than one injured person may be involved in a single accident so that the number of accidents resulting in injury would be less than the number of persons injured in accidents; and (3) the term "accident" ordinarily implies an accidental origin, whereas "persons injured" as used in the National Health Survey includes persons whose injury resulted from certain nonaccidental violence.

The number of persons injured in a specified time interval is always equal to or less than the incidence of injury conditions, since one person may incur more than one injury in a single accident.

#### Terms Relating to Disability

<u>Disability day.</u>—The following terms are used to describe the disability resulting from illness or injury: days of restricted activity, days of bed disability, hospital days, and days lost from work or school. All hospital days are, by definition, days of bed disability; all days of bed disability are, by definition, days of restricted activity. The converse form of these statements is, of course, not true. Days lost from work and days lost from school are special terms which apply to the currently employed and the school-age populations only, but these, too, are days of restricted activity. Hence, "restricted activity" is the most inclusive term used to describe the disability reported in the interview. Certain of the terms used in connection with disability measures are defined more explicitly below.

<u>Restricted-activity day.</u>—A day of restricted activity is one on which a person substantially reduces the amount of activity normal for that day because of a specific illness or injury. The type of reduction varies with the age and occupation of the individual as well as with the day of the week or season of the year. Restricted activity covers the range from substantial reduction to complete inactivity for the entire day.

<u>Bed-disability day.</u>—A day of bed disability is one on which a person stays in bed for all or most of the day because of a specific illness or injury. All or most of the day is defined as more than half the daylight hours. All hospital days for inpatients are considered to be days of bed disability even if the patient was not actually in bed at the hospital.

<u>Work-loss day.</u>—A day is counted as lost from work if the person would have been going to work at a job or business that day but instead lost the entire work day because of an illness or an injury. If the person's regular work day is less than a whole day and the entire work day was lost, it would be counted as a whole work day lost. Work-loss days are determined only for currently employed persons 17 years of age and over.

<u>School-loss day.</u>—A day is counted as lost from school if the child would have been going to school that day but instead lost the entire school day because of an illness or an injury. If the child's regular school day lasts only a part of a day and that part was lost from school, this would count as a whole day lost. School-loss days are determined only for children, 6-16 years of age.

Classification of injured persons by activity restrictions or medical attendance.—The classification of injured persons by activity restriction or medical attendance is based upon the classification of the injury. (See definitions that follow for: activity-restricting injury, bed-disabling injury, work- or school-loss injury, and medically attended injury.) For example, a person may have received several injuries in a single accident; if one of the injuries involved one or more days of restricted activity, one or more days in bed, or medical attendance, the person injured would correspondingly be classified as: with restricted activity, with bed disability, or medically attended.

Activity-restricting injury.—An activity-restricting injury is an injury which has caused at least one day of restricted activity. (See definition of "Restrictedactivity day.") The incidence of activity-restricting injuries is estimated from the number of such injuries reported as having occurred in the two calendar weeks before the interview week. For this reason, an injury which did not result in restricted activity until after the end of the two-week period in which it occurred is not classified as an activity-restricting injury.

<u>Bed-disabling injury</u>.—An injury resulting in at least one day of bed disability is called a bed-disabling injury. (See also definition of "Activity-restricting injury.")

Work- or school-loss injury.—An injury resulting in at least one day of work or school loss is called a work-loss injury or a school-loss injury. (See also definition of "Activity-restricting injury.")

<u>Medically attended injury.</u>—An injury for which a physician was consulted is called a medically attended injury. Consulting a physician includes consultation in person or by telephone for treatment or advice. Advice from the physician transmitted to the patient through the nurse is counted as medical consultation as well as visits to physicians in clinics or hospitals. If at one visit the physician is consulted about more than one injury for each of several patients, each injury is counted as medically attended.

A parent consulting a physician about a child's injury is counted as medical consultation about that injury even if the child was not seen by the physician at that time.

For the purpose of this definition "physician" includes doctors of medicine and osteopathic physicians. The term "doctor" is used in the interview, rather than "physician," because of the need to keep to popular usage. However, the concept toward which all instructions are directed is that which is described here.

An injury is counted as medically attended if a physician was consulted about it at its onset or at any time thereafter. However, the first medical attention for an injury that was experienced during the two-week period prior to the household interview may not occur until after the date of the interview. Such cases are necessarily treated as though there has been no medical attention.

#### Terms Relating to Class of Accident

Class of accident.-Injuries, injured persons, and resulting days of disability may be grouped according to class of accident. This is a broad classification of the types of event which resulted in persons being injured. Most of these events are accidents in the usual sense of the word, but some are other kinds of mishap, such as overexposure to the sun or adverse reactions to medical procedures, and others are nonaccidentalviolence, such as attempted suicide. The classes of accidents are: (1) motor-vehicle accidents, (2) accidents occurring while at work, (3) home accidents, and (4) other accidents. These categories are not mutually exclusive. For example, a person may be injured in a motor-vehicle accident which occurred while the person was at work. In this report, the accident class "motor vehicle" includes "home-motor vehicle" and "while at work-motor vehicle"; the accident class "while at work" includes "home-while at work"; therefore the class 'home accidents' excludes combinations with "while at work" and "motor vehicle."

<u>Motor-vehicle accident.</u>—The class of accident is ,"motor vehicle" if a motor vehicle was involved in any way. Thus, it is not restricted to moving motor vehicles or to persons riding in motor vehicles. A motor vehicle is any mechanically or electrically powered device, not operated on rails, upon which or by which any person or property may be transported or drawn upon a land highway. Any object, such as a trailer, coaster, sled, or wagon, being towed by a motor vehicle is considered a part of the motor vehicle. Devices used solely for moving persons or materials within the confines of a building and its premises are not counted as motor vehicles.

<u>Moving motor vehicle.</u>—The accident is classified as "moving motor vehicle" if at least one of the motor vehicles involved in the accident was moving at the time of the accident.

<u>Nonmoving motor vehicle</u>.—The accident is classified as 'nonmoving motor vehicle' if the motor vehicle was not moving at the time of the accident.

<u>Accident while at work.</u>—The class of accident is "while at work" if the injured person was 17 years of age or over and was at work at a job or a business at the time the accident happened.

<u>Home accident.</u>—The class of accident is "home" if the injury occurred either inside the house or outside the house. "Outside the house" refers to the yard, buildings, and sidewalks on the property. "Home" includes not only the person's own home but also any other home in which he might have been when he was injured.

<u>Other</u>.—The class of accident is "other" if the occurrence of injury cannot be classified in one or more of the first three class-of-accident categories. This category therefore includes persons injured in public places (e.g., tripping and falling in a store or on a public sidewalk), and also nonaccidental injuries such as homicidal and suicidal attempts. The survey does not cover the military population, but current disability of various types resulting from prior injury occurring while the person was in the Armed Forces is covered and is included in this class. The class also includes mishaps for which the class of accident could not be ascertained.

#### Terms Relating to Place of Accident

<u>Place of accident</u>.—Persons injured are classified in this report according to the type of place where the injury occurred.

<u>Home</u>.—The place of accident is considered as "home" if the injury occurred either inside or outside the home but within the property boundaries of the home. "Home" includes not only the person's own home but also any other home (vacant or occupied) in which he might have been when he was injured. "Home" includes any structure that has the primary function of a dwelling unit and includes the structure and premises of such places as apartment houses and house trailers. "Home" as a place of accident includes all accidents occurring at home, while "home" as a class of accident excludes accidents occurring at home but classified as "motor vehicle" or "while at work" because a motor vehicle was involved or the person's place of employment was a home.

Street or highway.—"Street or highway" means the entire area between property lines of which any part is open for the use of the public as a matter or right or custom. It includes the roadway, shoulder, curb, or public sidewalk; excluded are private driveways, lanes, or sidewalks.

<u>Farm</u>.—"Farm" as a place of accident refers to accidents occurring in farm buildings or on cultivated land, but does not include accidents occurring in the farm home or premises. A ranch is considered as a farm.

Industrial place.—"Industrial place" is the term applied to accidents occurring in an industrial place or premises. Included are such places as factories, railway yards, warehouses, workshops, logging camps, shipping piers, oil fields, shipyards, sand and gravel pits, canneries, and auto repair garages. Construction projects, such as houses, buildings, bridges, and new roads, are included in this category. Buildings undergoing remodeling, with the exception of private homes, are classified as industrial places or premises.

<u>School</u>.—"School" as a place of accident includes all accidents occurring in school buildings or on the premises. This classification includes elementary schools, high schools, colleges, and trade and business schools.

<u>Place of recreation.</u>—"Place of recreation" is used to describe accidents occurring in places organized for sports and recreation other than recreational areas located at a place already defined as "home," "industrial place," or "school." Bowling alley, amusement park, football stadium, and dance hall are examples of "place of recreation." In "place of accident" classification of injuries, the place is significant rather than the activity in which the person was engaged at the time of accident. Hence, an injury sustained by a person at a dance hall while he was at work is classified as a "place of recreation" injury. Likewise, an injury occurring while a person was engaged in a sport in an industrial place is classified as an "industrial place" injury.

<u>Other</u>.—Accidents which cannot be classified in any of the above groups or for which the place is unknown are classified as "other." Included in the classification are such places as restaurants, churches, business and professional offices, and open or wooded country.

#### Terms Relating to Type of Accident

<u>Type of accident</u>.—"Type of accident" was recorded ed for all accidents involving injury in order to classify injuries according to the circumstances relating to the accident. Accidents have been grouped by type according to the following concepts:

- (A) Accidents in which specific factors were involved, but which may or may not have caused the injury. Included in this group are moving motor vehicle, uncontrolled fire, explosion, firearms, and nonmotor vehicle such as train or bicycle. The definition of moving motor vehicle in this instance is identical to that for moving motor vehicle as a class of accident. However, an accident in which a nonmoving motor vehicle was involved is classified under the detailed type of accident listed below that best describes the circumstances relating to the accident.
- (B) Accidents where injury was caused directly by an agent, such as machinery in operation, a knife, scissors, nail, animal or insect, foreign body in eye or other orifice, or a

poisonous substance swallowed by the person involved.

- (C) Accidents described in terms of the events leading to the occurrence of the injury, such as falling, bumping into a person or object, being struck by a moving object, handling or stepping on sharp or rough objects, being caught in, pinched or crushed, coming in contact with hot object or flame, lifting, twisting, or stumbling.
- (D) Accidents resulting in injury that could not be classified in groups (A), (B), or (C) were classified as "other." Accidents of unknown type are also included in this group.

A complete listing of the types of accidents is shown in Appendix III within the format of Table A. In order that no injury would be described as resulting from more than one type of accident, an injury which could have been assigned to two or more types was classified in the first type designated in Table A (in Appendix III) that adequately described the circumstances of the accident.

#### Demographic and Economic Terms

Age.—The age recorded for each person is his age at last birthday. Age is recorded in single years and combined into groups suitable for the purpose of the table.

<u>Race</u>.—The population is divided into two groups according to race, "white" and "nonwhite." Nonwhite includes Negro, American Indian, Chinese, Japanese, and so forth. Mexican persons are included with "white" unless definitely known to be Indian or other nonwhite race,

Income of family or of unrelated individuals.—Each member of a family is classified according to the total income of the family of which he is a member. Within the household all persons related to each other by blood, marriage, or adoption constitute a family. Unrelated individuals are classified according to their own income.

The income recorded is the total of all income received by members of the family (or by an unrelated individual) in the 12-month period ending with the week of interview. Income from all sources is included, e.g., wages, salaries, rents from property, pensions, help from relatives, and so forth.

Usual activity status.—All persons in the population are classified according to their usual activity status during the 12-month period prior to the week of interview. The "usual" activity status, in case more than one is reported, is the one at which the person spent the most time during the 12-month period. Children under 6 years of age are classified as "preschool." All persons aged 6-16 years are classified as "school age."

The categories of usual activity status used in this report for persons aged 17 years and over are: <u>usually</u> working, <u>usually keeping house</u>, <u>retired</u>, and <u>other</u>. For several reasons these categories are not comparable with somewhat similarly named categories in official Federal labor force statistics. First, the responses concerning usual activity status are accepted without detailed questioning, since the objective of the question is not to estimate the numbers of persons in labor force categories but to identify crudely certain population groups which may have differing health problems. Second, the figures represent the usual activity status over the period of an entire year, whereas official labor force statistics relate to a much shorter period, usually one week. Third, the minimum age for usually working persons is age 17 in the U. S. National Health Survey and the official labor force categories include all persons age 14 or older. Finally in the definitions of specific categories which follow, certain marginal groups are classified differently to simplify procedures.

Usually working includes persons 17 years of age or older who are paid employees; self employed in their own business, profession, or in farming; or unpaid employees in a family business or farm. Work around the house, or volunteer or unpaid work, such as for a church, etc., is not counted as working.

Usually keeping house includes female persons 17 years of age or older whose major activity is described as "keeping house" and who cannot be classified as "working."

<u>Retired</u> includes persons 45 years old or over who consider themselves to be retired. In case of doubt, a person 45 years of age or older is counted as retired if he, or she, has either voluntarily or involuntarily stopped working, is not looking for work, and is not described as "keeping house." A retired person may or may not be unable to work.

Other in this report includes males 17 years of age or older not classified as "working," or "retired" and females 17 years of age or older not classified as "working," "keeping house," or "retired." Persons aged 17 years and over who are going to school are included in this group.

<u>Residence</u>.—Residence is the term used to signify the division of the United States into urban, ruralnonfarm, and rural-farm populations. The definition of urban and rural areas is the same as that used in the 1950 Census.

<u>Urban</u>.—The urban population includes all persons living in (a) places of 2,500 inhabitants or more which are incorporated as cities, boroughs, or villages; (b) incorporated towns of 2,500 inhabitants or more except in New England, New York, and Wisconsin where "Towns" are simply minor civil divisions of counties; (c) the densely settled urban fringe including both incorporated and unincorporated areas around cities of 50,000 or more inhabitants; and (d) unincorporated places or 2,500 inhabitants or more outside any urban fringe. The remaining population is classified as rural.

Rural farm.-The rural-farm population includes all rural residents living on farms. In deciding whether the members of a household live on a farm or ranch, the statement of the household respondent is accepted with the following exception. A house occupied by persons who pay cash rent for house and yard only is not counted as a farm or ranch even if the surrounding area is farm land. This special case does not cover: (1) the living quarters of a tenant farmer who rents farm land as well as house and yard; (2) the quarters of a hired hand who receives living quarters on a farm as part of his compensation; or (3) separate living quarters inside a structure which is classified as being on a farm. In all of these cases the living quarters are counted as being on a farm.

<u>Rural nonfarm</u>.—The rural-nonfarm population includes all of the remaining rural population.

States Included

<u>Region.</u>—For the purpose of classifying the population by geographic area, the States are grouped into four regions. These regions, which correspond to those used by the Bureau of the Census, are as follows:

Region

Northeast	Maine, New Hampshire, Vermont, Massachusetts, Rhode Island, Connecticut, New York, New Jersey, Pennsylvania								
North Central	Michigan, Ohio, Indiana, Illinois, Wisconsin, Minnesota, Iowa, Miacauri, North Dakota								
	Missouri, Norui Dakola, South Dakota Nebraska Kansas								
South	Delaware, Maryland, District of Columbia, Virginia, West Virginia, North Carolina, South Carolina								
•	Georgia, Florida, Kentucky, Texas Tennessee, Alabama, Mississippi,								
West	Arkansas, Louisiana, Oklahoma, Montana, Idaho, Wyoming, Colorado, New Mexico, Arizona, Utah, Nevada, Alaska, Washington, Oregon, California, Hawaii								
North Central South West	Michigan, Ohio, Indiana, Illino Wisconsin, Minnesota, Iowa, Missouri, North Dakota, South Dakota, Nebraska, Kansas Delaware, Maryland, District of Columbia, Virginia, West Virgini North Carolina, South Carolina, Georgia, Florida, Kentucky, Tex Tennessee, Alabama, Mississipp Arkansas, Louisiana, Oklahoma, Montana, Idaho, Wyoming, Colorado, New Mexico, Arizona Utah, Nevada, Alaska, Washingto Oregon, California, Hawaii								

## APPENDIX III

## QUESTIONNAIRE

U. S port	The items below National Health s on more than on	show Surve e pers	the exact y. The act on, condition	conter cual qu on, ac	nt and Jestion cident	wording of the b anaire is designed or hospitalization	asic q ed for on. Su	uesti a hou ch rep	onnaire us ischold as petitive sp	sed in t a unit baces a	he nation and inclu re omitted	vide h des ac in thi	ouseho Idition s illus	ld survey of th al spaces for r tration.	ne ·e-
CONFIDE	ENTIAL - The Nation would per poses of	onal He mit ide the sur	alth Survey ntification o vey, and wil	is aut of the i ll not b	norized adivid e discl	by Public Law 65 al will be held str losed or released t	2 of the	e 84d confidents for	h Congress ential, will any other p	(70 Stat be used	489; 42 U only by p (22 FR 10	J.S.C. ( ersons (687).	305) / engage	All information d in and for the	which pur-
FORM NNS-4 (4-4-60)				U.S. ( E CTING A U.S.	DEPART	INTOF COMMERCIAL SECTING AGENT FOR CHEALTH SERVICE	E THE						1	Questionnaire	
		,	N A	TION	AL I	HEALTH SUR	VEN	, <sup>.</sup>					·	Ouestionnaires	· · ·
2. (a) Addre	ss or description of 1	ocation	· . ·				3. Id C	en.	3a. Reg.	4. Sub-	5. Sample	6. PSU		Segment No. 8	. SerialN
					·		-  ~	<u> </u>	Code	weight			<sup></sup>		
		<u>_</u>					-	$\cdot$					1		· .
(b) Mailir	g addreas if not show	wn in (a)	)		•				· · · ]	•		L:,			
(c) Type of living quarters	Housing unit Other	(d) Nas	me of Special	Dwelli	ng Plac	e Code	9. 1	this h	iouse.an a fi	orm or rà	nch?		· · · ·	' [ ] Yes '	□ No
Г.	Ask items 10 and 11 Rural	only, if	"rural" box	is chec other	æd:		10.	Do you	own.or rent	this pla	ce?			Peet free	
11. If "Own	" or "rent free" in qu	uestion	10, ssk:		ì			. <u> </u>	] Yes-3						· · · ·
(a) Does	this place have 10 o	r more o	cres?			· * •	(c)	During	the past 12	months	did soles	(a) D	oring th	e past 12 months	did sales
If "rent"	in question 10, ask:	· · ·						of crap praduc	s, fivestock ts from the	⊧, candioth placeiann	ver form, sumt to	9 9	f crops, roducts	livestock, and ot from the place on	her form nount to
(b) Does	the place you rent h	ove 10 o	r mare acres	7			:	150 ог Г	more? Yes			\$	250 ar m	are?	
12. Are ther	e any other living au	orters, o	ccupied or							<u></u>	<u> </u>	<u>.</u>			<u>.</u>
Vacant, i	n this building (opart	ment)?.				es [] No	и.	Yes,"	to question	INSTRUC Is 12, 13	or 14 apply	R Q. 12 definit	, 13 ANI ion of a	D 14 housing unit to d	etermine
ENTRAN	ICE to get te his livi	ng quert	ers?	· · · · · · ·	· · 🗀 ¥	es 🗋 No	list	ing is	to be correc	edditio	nal questio	onsues	should	be filled and whe	ther the
Ask at all u 14. Is there to live in	nits except apartment any other building on - either occupied or	houses this pro vacant?	: operty for per			es 🗌 No	13. What is the telephone number here?     10. In case I've overlooked onything,     what is the best time to call?						thing,  ?		
			·		17.	RECORD OF CAL	LS AT	HOUSE	HOLDS			<u> </u>			
	Item	Date	1		Com.	2	Com.		3	Com.	4		Com.	5	Com.
Enri allbacks for	re household	Time											- <u> </u>		
individual espondents	Col. No	Time		•••••						-			1		
TYPE				F	18	REASON FOR	NON-	INTE	RVIEW		·		7		
	Refusal (Fill item	19)			acant -	non-seasonai		emolis	hed		Interview	пот обл	ained for	r: '	
·   C	No one at home-		Fill liem	۵v	acant -	seasonal	<u> </u>	In sample hy mistake							
Reason:	Temporarily absent	. }	20		laual re	sidence elsewhere		Definition and the sample Cols.							
	Other (Specity)	)			ther (5)	orces		Other (Specify) because:							
·	<u> </u>	·	·				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·								
19. Reason I	or refusal					• • •							, t ,		
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				2	0. TYPE A FOLLO	W-UP F	ROCE	DURE	<u>.</u>					
If final call	results in a Type A r	non-inter	view (except	Refusa	is) tsk	e the following step:	s:							1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
<ol> <li>Contac</li> <li>Eind c</li> </ol>	t orighbors (caretake	rs, etc.	) until you fi e household	nd some	rone wb	o knows the family.	if nam	es of a	il members	not know	n ascertoit	relati	onships	Record this inf	ormation
in the	regular spaces inside	the que	estionnaire.			- opponnet oges,							onsinps		
3. Find e	aut it anyone in the he	masing u	mit 15 now 10	a hosp	(a) aş.:	a patient; if so, whic	h pers	жа (С 15 —	. This is a	loue by a	sking the fo	ollowing	questi	эп:	
4. Isony	one in the howsehold	now in 1	the hospital?	ים	(es	∐ No		Ľ	_]Doma'r kene	W	· [	No ci	ontact m	ade .	
(a) If	"Yes,"Who? (Enter	( name)_										ol. No.	) <u> </u>		
1. (a) What i (b) What a and al persor	is the name of the hea are the names of all a ll persons staying her as in the prescribed a	ad of thi sther per ce who b stder.)	is household? sons who liv ave no usual	(Enter e here? place o	(List (List of reside	in first column) all persons who usur ence elsewere. List	aliy liv these	e here,	Last no	me		(1)	Last na		(2)
(c) Do on	y (ather) lodgers ar r	oomers	live here?		⊡ No	🗌 Yes (L	ist) 🛶		→						
(d) is the tempo	re anyone else who li rarily in a hospital?	ves her	e who is now		Yes (L	ist) —		→							
(e) Away	on business?		<b>□</b> N•	Yes (L	ist)		First na	me and i	oitial		Füstn	ame and initial			
(f) On a	visit?	n here ·	now?		Yes (L	ist) — ist) -									
VW IS THE	anyone erse srdyin	-y	••• لي				_								
(h) Do any of the people in this household have a home elsewhere?															
и 🗔	o (leave on questions	aire)	Yes	(apply membe	houseb 1, delete	old membership rule :)	s; if no								
2. How are y head, wife	memory detects) How one you related to the head of the household? (Enter relationship to head, for example: head, wife, daughter, graadson, mother-in-law, partner, lodger / odger / o wife, etc.)										Relationship Relationship				

•	3. How ald were you on your last birthday?	Age Under . 1 year
	4. Race (Check one bax for each person)	Vhite Negro
	5. Sex (Check one box for each person)	
	If 17 years old or over, ask:	Under 17 years
	<ol> <li>Are you now married, widowed, divarced, separated or never married? (Check one box for each person)</li> </ol>	Married Divorced Widowed Separated Never matried
	If 17 years old or over, ask:	Uoder 17 years
•	7. (o) What is the highost grade you attended in school? (Circle highest grade atteoded or cbeck "Name")	Elem: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 High: 1 2 3 4 College: 1 2 3 4 5+
	(b) Did you finish thegrade (year)?	None
	If Male and 17 years old or over, ask:	Fem.or und. 17 yrs
	8. (a) Did you ever serve in the Armed Forces of the United States?	C Yes No
	If "Yes," ask:	
	(b) Are you now in the Armea Porces, not counting the reserves r (If "Yes," delete this person from questionnaire)	Yes No
	(c) Was any of your service during a war or was it peace-time only?	War Peace-
·	If "War," ask: (d) During which war did you serve?	
	If "Peace-time" only, ask:	Other
	(e) Was any of your service between June 27, 1950 and January 31, 1955?	Yes No
÷.	If 17 years old ar over, ask: 9. (a) What were you doing most of the post 12 momths	Under 17 years
	(For males): working, or doing something else?	Keeping bouse
	(For females): working, keeping bouse, or doing something else?	Something else
	If "Something else" checked, and person is 45 years old or over, ask:	Yea No
I	If "Working," in q. 9(a), ask:	Under 17 years
	10. (a) Were you working last week or the week before?	
· ·	If "Keeping house" or "Something else" in q. 9(a), ask:	Yes No
·	If "No." in a. 10(a) or 10(b), ask:	
	(c) Even though you did not work lost week or the week befare, do you have a lab or business?	Yes No
	NOTE: Determine which adults are at home and record this information. Beginning with question 11 you are to interview for himself or berself, each adult person who is at home.	Under 17 years
	11. Were you sick at any time LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? (That is, the 2-week period	Yes No
•	(a) What was the matter?	
	(b) Anything else?	
• • •	12. Last week or the week before did you take any medicine or treatment for any condition (besideswhich you taid me about)?	Yes No
	(a) For what conditions? (b) Anything alra?	
	13. Last week or the week before did you have any occidents or Injuries?	Yes No.
	(o) What were they? (b) Anything else?	2
	14. Did you ever have on (any other) accident or Injury that was still bothering you last week or the week before?	Yes No
11	(o) In what way did it bather you? (b) Anything else?	
	15. AT THE PRESENT TIME do you have any ailments of conditions that have lasted for a long time? (If "No") Even though they don't bother you all the time?	Yes No
,	(a) what are they? (b) Anything else?	
	16. How anyone in the family - you, your, etc had any of these conditions DURING	Yes No
• •	THE PAST 12 MONTHS? (Read Card A, condition by condition; record any conditions menticated in the column for the person)	and the second
•	17. Does anyone in the family have any of these conditions? (Read Card B, condition by condition; record any conditions mentioned in the column for the person)	Yes No
	For persons 17 years old or over, show who responded for(or was present during the asking of) R questions 11-17. If person responded for self, show whether entirely or partly. For persons under 17 show who responded for them.	Responded for self-catively Responded for self-partly Col. No. was respondent
	18. (a) Has anyone in the family been in a hospital DURING THE PAST 12 MONTHS?	Yes No
	If "Yes," (b) How many different times were you in the hospital overnight or longer?	
-	19 (a) During the past 12 months has anyone in the family been a patient in a nursing home or	Yea No
·· · •	summerson If 'Yes,'' (b) How many times were you in a nursing home or sanitarium?	No. of times
	20. If baby under one year listed as a housebold member, ask: (a) Was baby born in a hospital or at home?	Hospital Home
	If "hospital" in q. 20(a) and 1 or more in q. 18(b), ssk: (b) Was this hospitalization included in the number you just gave me?	Yes No

41

۰.

					Table I	- ILLNES	SES, IMPAIRMENTS A	ID INJURIES						
	Col. No. of person	E Question number	Did you EVER at any time talk to a doctor about ?	Ask for all <u>illnesses</u> and <u>present effects</u> of old injuries: (a) If doctor talked to: What did the doctor more? (b) If doctor not talked ro: Record original entry and ask (day(ds) as required. Ask for all injuries during past 2 weeks: What part of the body was hurt? What past? Anything else? (Also, fill Table A for all injuries) (d-1)	What was the course of? (This column is to be asked if entry in Col. (d-1) is an Impairment or a Symptom or H entry in Col.(d-1) is from q. 14 or q.17) (If "Cause" is an injury, also fill Table A) (d-2)	If eye trouble of any kind and of years old or over, ask: Con you see well ensugh to read ordinory prior were prior with glosses? (d-3)	When kind of is it? Ask only for: Any entry in Col. (d-1) or (d-2) that includes the words: Asthma ''condition'' Cysts ''disease'' Growths Tumor ''trouble'' For an allergy or stroke ask: How does the offect you? (d-4)	What part of the bady is offsctred? Ask only for: Impairments; Injuties; and for: Absccssee, boils, infections, inflam- mation, soores, ulcers Acches, pains, sooteness, werekness; Bleeding or bloid clots Cancer, tumor, cysts or growths Wernalgia or neuritis Virus Show detail for: Err or sys - (one or both) Head - (Skull, scalp, face); Bock - (Upper, middle, tupper; elbow, lower; wrist, hand; one or both) Leg - (inp; ankle, ioue; one or both) (d-5)	LAST W OR THE WEEK E FORE do coust to cut d on your to a much doy? Check No Check No (Go to Col. (k))	/EEK SE- lid usual ssfar i as a one Yes	How many days, includ- ing the Satur- days and Sun- days? (c)	How many of these - days were you in bed oil in bed oil or most of the day? (b)	If 6-16 years old ask: How mony days did keep you from school last week before? (i)	
1			□ Yes □ No		. <b>*</b>	□ Yes □ No	Ĩ	*			Days	Days or None	Days or None	

						Table	I - HOSP	TALIZAT	ION DURING PAST 12 MONTHS		
			]			To Inte	rviewer		What did they say at the haspital the condition was	Were any operations performed on	] · [
Line number	Col. No. of per- son	Ques- tion No.	When did you enter the hos- pitol? (Month, year)	How many nights were you in the hospital?	How many of these nights were in the past 12 months?	ow     Will yoa     H       uaty of beser ights     need to ask cols.     of       rere in be     (f) and     w       was r12     th     th       (c)     (x)     b		Was this person still in the hos- pital on last Sunday night?	did they give it a medicol name? (If "they" didn't say, ask): Wher did the lest doctror you tolked to say it was? (Show same detail as in cols. (d-1)-(d-5) of T.1) (If condition from accident or injury, also fill Table A)	you during this stay at the hos- pital? [f <sup>11</sup> Yes," (a) What was the name of the operation? (b) Any other operations?	
	(a)	(ь)	(c)	(d)	(e)	(x)	(f)	(g)	(b)	(i)	1
1			Mo: Yr:	Nights	All or Nights	Tes No	Nights	□ Yes □ No		TYes No	
2			Mo: Yr:	Nights	All or Nights	Yes No	Nights	C Yes		Yes No	
3			Mo: Yr:	Nights	Ail or Nights	Yes No	Nights	Tes Ves		Yes No	

X-RAY QUESTIONS				
21. (a) We are interested in all kinds of X-rays-Did you have your teath X-rayed during the past 3 months(that is, fromthrough lost Sunday)?	Yes	⊡ No	Yes	No No
(b) How many times?	No. of times		No. of times	
22. During the past 3 months did you have a CHEST X-ray?	Yes-Cheat	No No	Yes-Chest	⊡ No
<ul> <li>23. (a) Did you have any (other) kind of X-ray at all during the past 3 months?</li> <li>If "Yes,"</li> <li>(b) What part of the body was X-rayed?</li> </ul>	Yes Part(s) of body:	[] No	Yes Part(a) of body:	□ No

			Tal	le X - FILL O	NE LINE FOR EA	CH PART OF BODY ENTRY F	OM QUESTIONS	22-25						
Line number	Cal. No. of person	Question No.	Part of body	How many different times did you hove your X-rayed dur- ing the past 3 months?	Where did you have the X-ray(s)? Haw many X-rays were at the (hos- pital, doctor's attice, etc.)?	What was this X-ray(s) far a check-up or an examination or for treatment?	If "borh" in col. (f) ask: How many of theseX-ray(a) ware for treat- ment?	If "both" or "treatment" in col. (f) ask: For what condition were you being treated?						
	(a)	(Ь)	(c)	(d)	(e)	(0	(8)	(b)						
1 2				-	Hospirel Dr. office Other Hospitel Dr. office Other	Cbeck-up/examination  Trestment  Both  Cbeck-up/examination  Trestment Both  Totalment  Both								
3 26.	Other     Both       3     Hospital     Check-up/examination       Dr. office     Dr. office       Both     Both													
	your 's, stc.7 (Shaw Card H) Include income from oll sources, such as wages, solaries, rants from property, pensions, help from relatives, etc.													

					Table I	- ILLNESS	<u>ES, IMPAI</u>	RMENTS /	AND INJU	RIES						
If 17 years old as over and if, "Year", in q. 10(s), 10(c), sat: 10(c), sat: 1	Did y (did TNE befor	ou fir it hop PAST e that	st notice pen) DURING '3 MONTHS or time?	To Inter- viewer:	Did you first notice DURING THE PAST 12 MONTHS or before that	How long since you last talked to a doctor about?	Do you still take any medicine or treatment	About how many days during the past	If 1 or more days in col. (q-1) and col. (e) is cbeck-	Ai Piecse look at	ik after co for If *1,* "2" or	in col.	last condi	tion. gr <sup>.</sup> "2" in	(f ''1, '' or ''2'' or ''3'' in col. (r) ask:	
	Check	one	Did start	CON-	fimer	(If less	doctor	shan tha,	ed, ask:	and read	3 in col. (r):	(*);	col. (r	) ask:		
	Before 3 mos. (Ge to Cel. (n))	Dur- ing 3 mos.	pars 2 weeks or before that time? (If during past 2 weeks, ask): Which week, fost week or the week hefore?	if col. (k) is check- ed, or the condi- tion is on Card A or is an im- psir- ment; other- wise, STOP		menth enter <sup>1</sup> 'Und. 1" for "Mo.")	ed for ? Or, follow any edvice he gave?	kept you in bed for all or most of the day?	of these days were during last week or the week before?	store- ment. Then toll me which store- ment firs you best, in terms of health. (Show Cards C- F, as appro- priate)	Is this because of any of the condi- tions you have taid me about?	(Enter X on line for each condi- tion named)	How long have you been ? (Insert the words of the state- ment select- ed)	If 17 years old or over, ask: Yere you working art a lob or business up to that time?	Please look at this card and read seach state- ment. Then tell me which state- ment fits you best. (Show	Line number
(i)	(k)	(I)	(m)	(84)	(n)	(0)	(p)	(q-1)	_(g-2)	(1)	(=)	(1)	(u) ~	(v)	Card G)	Ľ.
Days or None			Last week Weekbefore Before 2 wks		During past 12 months Before Birth	Mos. Yrs.	Yes No No Dr.	Days or None	Days or None		Ves No		Moe. Yrs.	Yes   Ño   Und-17		1

	Table II - HOSPITALIZATION DURING PAST 12 MONTHS						
	For completed hospitaliz over who show an operation	ations ("No" in Col. (g)) or m, a setting of a fracture, or	f persons 6 years old and a delivery in Cols. (b) or(i):	What is the name and address of the hospital you were in?			
	How many nights were you in the hospital, be- fore you had your opera- tion (delivery, etc.)?	After you left the hos- pital, how many days was it before you returned to your usual activities full-time?	If "still unable" in (k) ask: Naw long has it been since you left the hospital?	(Enter name, city and State; if city not known, enter county)			
·	(j)	(k)	(1)	(m)			
	No. of nights	No. of days	Over 6 months If under 6 months: Days Months:				
·	No. of aights	No. of days	Over 6 months If under 6 months: DaysMonths:				
	No. of nights	No. of days Still unable	Over 6 months If under 6 months: DaysMonths:				

X-RAY QUESTIONS				
<ul> <li>24. (a) During the post 3 months, did anyons in the family have any X-rays for the treatment of a candition?</li> <li>If "Yes,"</li> <li>(b) What part of the body was treated?</li> </ul>	Yes Part(s) of body:	<u>No</u>	Yes Part(s) of body:	<u>∩</u> № ,
(c) Was this included in the X-ray(s) you taild me about hefore?	Yes	<u>□</u> No	Yes	No No
25. (a) Did anyone in the family have a fluoroscope during the past 3 months? If ''Yes,''	Yes Part(s) of body:	No No	Yes Part(s) of body: `	No No
(b) What part of the body was this for?			·	
(c) Was this included in the X-ray(s) you told me about before?	Yes	[ ] No	I □ Yes	No

(Ask a	fter all	Ask for each person X-rays have been record	with 2 or mo ded through c	re lines in Table X: ols.(a)-(b) of Table	X for sperson)	FOOTNOTES	1		
Were If "Y Which	any of ( es," X-rays	theseX-rays you tol were these?	d me about to (i)	ken at the same time	17	•		•	
No Stop)	Yes	Enter information belo	w for X-rays	taken at same time:					
		Part(s) of body:	No.	Part(s) of body:	No.				
		Part(s) of body:	No.	Part(s) of body:	No.			•	
		- ·							•
		Part(s) of body:	No.	Part(s) of body:	No.				
•	· • -	-							
Group	No.		Group No.		Group No.	Gro	sup No.	Group No.	

		Table A - (Accidents and Injuries)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Line No. from	1. When did the occident happen?	2. At the time of the accident, what part of the b	ody was hurt? What kind of injury was it?
Table 1	Year	Part(a) of body	Kind of injury(s)
	(If 1960 or 1961 also enter the month)		
Accident			
last week or	Month:		
week before (Go to,q. 3)			
3. (a) Was a car, tr	uck, bus or other motor vehicle involved in the a	ccident in any way?Yes	No (Ga to Section B)
(b) Was more the	an one motor vahicle involved?	Yes (more than on	be) 🔲 No
(c) Was it (eithe	r one) moving at the time?	Yes [	No (Go to Section B)
4. Were you outside	the vehicle, getting in or out of it, a passenger	or were you the driver? 1. Outside (Go to Section 4 g. 3)	2. Getting in ar out 3. Passenger 4. Driver
Sectio	n A - (Motor Vehicle Accidents)	Section B - (Non-M	otor Vehicle Accidents)
· · · · · ·	If "Outside" in q. 4. ask:	7. How did the oscident harmon?	· · · · ·
5. (a) How did the	occident happen?	A.1. Any injury involving an uncontrolled	fire or explosion
l. 🗔 Accide	ens between motor vehicle and person riding	2. Any injury involving the discharge of	a firearm
on bic drawn	ycle, in streetcar, on railroad train, on horse- vehicle	3. Any injury from an accident involving	a non-motor vehicle in motion (streetcar, railroad
2. 🗔 Accide	ent between mutor vehicle and person who	train, airplane, boat, bicycle, horse-d	tawn vehicle)
WES W	alking, running, or standing	B.4. Any injury caused by machinery (belt	or motor driven) while in operation
3. Other	(Specily how the accident heppened)	(Specify kind of machinery)	
		5. Any injury caused by edge or point of	kaife, scissors, aail or other cutting or -
		piercing implement	
(b) Whatkind(s)	of mator vehicle was involved?	6. Any injury caused by foreign body in a	eye, windpipe, or other orifices
1. 🗌 Car	2 Taxi 3 Bus	7. Any injury caused by animal or insect	
4. 🔄 Truck	5. Motorcycle 6. Otber (Specify)	<ol> <li>Any injury caused by poisonous subst</li> </ol>	ance swallowed (Specify substance)
		C.9. Fell on stairs or steps or from s beigh	bt -
•		10. All other falls	
If "Getting in or	out" "Passenger" or "Driver," in q. 4, ask:	11. Bumped into object or person (covers punching, kicking, etc.)	all collisions between persons including striking,
6. (a) How did the	accident happen?	12. 🛄 Struck by moving object (include obje	cts held io own hand or hand of other person, also
1. 🗀 Accide	ent between two or more motor vehicles on	falling, flying, or thrown objects)	
. roadwa	47	<ol> <li>13. Handling or stepping on sharp or rong glass, rope,etc.</li> </ol>	b objects such as stones, splinters, broken
2. 🛄 Accide object	ent between motor vebicle and some other op roadway	14. Caught in, pinched or cruahed between atsticoary object	n twn moving objects as between a moving and a
(Speci	[7 object)	15. 🔄 Came in contact with hot object or su	bstance or open flame
3. Motor	we bicle came to sudden stop on roadway	16. 🛄 One-time lifting or other one-time exer	rtion
4. Motor	vehicle ran off roadway	17. 🛄 Twisting, atumbling, etc.	
5. 🛄 Other (	(Specify how the accident happened)	D.18. 🔲 Other (Specify how accident heppened	0
		•	•
(b) What Lind - f	motor vehicle were will a factor (a) factor		
out of) when	the accident happened?		
1. Car' 4. Trock	2. Taxi 3. Bus 5. Motorcycle 6. Other (Specific)		
4 (a) Where 114 1		AVA FUR ALL AUGUENTS	
o. (o) #nere did the 1. □ At bom	e accident nappen at home or some other place? he (inside house) 2. [7] Ar	bome (adjacent premises)	ome other place
· If "Some other pl	lace," ask:		
(b) What kind of 3. 🗋 Street a	place was it? and highway (includes roadway) 6. 🗖 S-1	uool (includes school premises)	
4. D Farm		ace of recreation and sports, except at school	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
5. 🛄 ludustr	ial place (includes premises) 8. Oth	net (Specify the place where eccident happened)	
9. Were you at worl	k at your job or business when the accident happ	ened?	·
1. 🗌 Yes	2. No 3. Wh	ile in Armed Services 4. Un	der 17 at time of accident
		FOOTNOTES AND COMMENTS	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		2	
			<u>`</u>

•

.

Ardman     NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY     NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY     NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY       1. Ardman     16. Any other shools canced model     16. Any other shools canced model     17. Water shools canced model     18. Any other shools canced model     18. Not able to say that cancel model     18. Not able to say that model     18. Not able to say		NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY			
<ul> <li>A schme</li> <li>I. Arthme</li> <li>I. Arthme</li> <li>I. Arthme</li> <li>I. Arthme</li> <li>Toberchois</li> <li>Tobe</li></ul>		Check List of Chronic Conditions	NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY	NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY	NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY
<ul> <li>A chance:</li> <li>A chance:</li> <li>A chance:</li> <li>Theoreticais:</li> <li>A chance:</li> <li>A cha</li></ul>			For:	For:	
<ul> <li>I. Auber of the control of the control</li></ul>			Workers and other persons except Housewives and Children	Children from 6 through 16 years old	
<ul> <li>2. Laber of our scheduler in acted of sinus trouble is future yrouslot in general scheduler expension is general expension expension is general expension expension is general expension expension is general expension expension expension</li></ul>		1. Asthma     16. Any other chronic stomach       2. Tuberculosis     trouble       1. Asthma     17. Kidney stones or chronic	1. Not able to work at all.	1. Not able to go to school at all.	<ol> <li>Confined to the house all the time, except in emergencies.</li> </ol>
<ul> <li>4. Hoteforting of the stretces</li> <li>5. Heart crouble</li> <li>7. High blood pressure</li> <li>8. Heart crouble</li> <li>9. Korke</li> <li>9. Korke</li> <li>10. Thyroid trouble erg giter</li> <li>21. Thyroid trouble erg giter</li> <li>22. Epigpay</li> <li>23. Epigpay</li> <li>24. Not limited in any of these ways.</li> <li>4. Not limited in any of these ways.</li> <li>4. Not limited in any of these ways.</li> <li>5. Stoke</li> <li>7. Thyroid trouble</li> <li>7. Thyroid trouble erg giter</li> <li>22. Epigpay</li> <li>23. Epigpay</li> <li>24. Dennic networks comble</li> <li>25. Chance actions trouble</li> <li>26. Chanci actions trouble</li> <li>27. Chance actions trouble</li> <li>28. Chance actions trouble</li> <li>29. Chance actions trouble</li> <li>20. Chance actions trouble</li> <li>20. Chance actions trouble</li> <li>21. Hay fever</li> <li>22. Chance actions trouble</li> <li>23. Chance actions trouble</li> <li>24. Chance actions trouble</li> <li>25. Science trouble</li> <li>26. Card B</li> <li>27. Chance actions trouble</li> <li>28. Action to see outside</li> <li>29. Sections trouble with heating</li> <li>29. Sections trouble with heating</li> <li>3. Charle actions trouble</li> <li>3. Able to keep house at all.</li> <li>3. Able to keep house but limited in anout of third of play.</li> <li>3. Able to keep house but limited in anout of third of play.</li> <li>3. Able to keep house but limited in any of these ways.</li> <li>4. Nor limited in any of these ways.</li> <li>5. Charle actions.</li> <li>5. Charle actions.</li> <li>5. Charle actions.</li> <li>6. Any speech defect</li> <li>5. Also to keep house but limited in kind or anound the dire play.</li> <li>5. Also to keep house but limited in kind or anound thead action.</li> <li>6. Any speech defect</li> <li>6. Charl</li></ul>		Chronic pronchilis     Kidney trouble     Kidney trouble     Kidney trouble     Repeated attacks of sinus trouble     Repeated attacks of sinus trouble     Repeated attacks of sinus trouble     Kidney trouble     Kidney trouble	2. Able to work but limited in amoun: of work or kind of work.	2. Able to go to school but limited to certain types of schools or in school attendance.	2. Able to go outside but need the help of
<ul> <li>8. Hext trouble</li> <li>9. Stoke</li> <li>9. Stoke</li> <li>21. May allegy</li> <li>4. Not limited in any of these ways.</li> <li>5. Stometh succes</li> <li>6. Card B</li> <li>Card B</li> <li>Card B</li> <li>Card B</li> <li>Card B</li> <li>Card Card D</li> <li>Not able to keep house at all.</li> <li>2. Serious trouble with seeing, even when wearing glasses</li> <li>3. Cafe galase</li> <li>4. Not able to keep house bat limited in any of these ways.</li> <li>4. Not limited in any of these ways.</li> <li>5. Stometh such with seeing, even when wearing glasses</li> <li>3. Cafe galase</li> <li>4. Any speeth defect</li> <li>5. Missing fingers, hand, or anntoes, foot, or leg</li> <li>6. Pairy</li> <li>7. Paralysis of any kind</li> <li>8. Repeated trouble with back of spine</li> <li>9. Card B, Intervention</li> <li>7. Paralysis of any kind</li> <li>8. Repeated trouble with back of spine</li> <li>9. Defines or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, and or any of these ways.</li> <li>4. Not limited in any of these ways.</li> <li>5. Stometh with a set of spine</li> <li>6. Pairy</li> <li>7. Paralysis of any kind</li> <li>8. Repeated trouble with back of spine</li> <li>9. Defines or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, and or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, and or any of these ways.</li> <li>5. Stometh with back of spine</li> <li>6. Define the foot, leg, fingers, and or other activities.</li> <li>9. Repeated trouble with back of spine</li> <li>9. Card back of spine</li> <li>9. Card back of any kind</li> <li>9. Repeated trouble with act back of spine</li> <li>9. Card back of spine</li> <li< td=""><td></td><td>6. Hardening of the arteries     19. Mental illness       7. High blood pressure     20. Diabetes</td><td>3. Able to work but limited in kind or amount of other activities.</td><td>3. Able to go to school but limited in other</td><td>another person in getting around outsi</td></li<></ul>		6. Hardening of the arteries     19. Mental illness       7. High blood pressure     20. Diabetes	3. Able to work but limited in kind or amount of other activities.	3. Able to go to school but limited in other	another person in getting around outsi
10. Tooble with varicose velas       24. Chenic persons trouble         11. Hennic model of the varies       24. Chenic persons trouble         25. Concer       25. Concer         13. Tomor, cyst or growth       26. Chenic persons trouble         14. Chenic persons trouble       27. Hennic or rupture         26. Cond B       Cord D         Card B         Card D         NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY         Check List of Solected Inpairments         1. Deafness trouble with hearing       2. Scritous trouble with hearing         2. Scritous trouble with hearing       3. Able to keep house but limited in kind of         3. Clefe palse:       3. Able to keep house but limited in kind of         4. Any speech defect       3. Able to keep house but limited in kind of         5. Missing fingers, hand, or annow for deferity of the foot, leg, fingers, and or hack or spine       3. Able to keep house but limited in kind of         9. Club foot       10. Peranaption present since birth       4. Not limited in any of these ways.         9. Club foot       10. Perangers of any kind       8. Repeated trouble with back or spine         9. Club foot       10. Perangers and persons       4. Not limited in any of these ways.         10. Defendence dromatic model of any defensity of the foot, leg, fingers, and or back       5. Missing finger		8. Heart trouble     21. Inyrola trouble or golder       9. Stroke     22. Any allergy       23. Follersy	4. Not limited in any of these ways.	4. Not limited in any of these ways	in getting around freely.
12. Hey tever       26. Chroaic skin trouble         13. Tunnar, cyst or gautbiladder or liver trouble       26. Chroaic skin trouble         13. Stomach uleer       28. Prosente trouble         21. Gord B       Attional HEALTH SURVEY         Attional HEALTH SURVEY       NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY         Card B       NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY         Check List of Selected Impairmonts       1. Not able to keep house at all.         1. Desifices or serious trouble with seeing, even when wasing glasses       1. Not able to keep house bat limited in amount or kind of housework.         3. Cleft palate       1. Not able to keep house bat limited in indor a mount or kind of housework.       3. Able to keep house bat limited in indor a mount or kind of play.       Croup 5. \$1,000 - \$1,999         3. Missing figures, hand, or amtoes, foot, or leg       4. Not limited in any of these ways.       4. Not limited in any of these ways.       Croup 6. \$4,000 + \$1,999         9. Club foot       10. Permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, am ortback II. Any condition present since bith       And the foot, leg, fingers, am ortback       And the foot, leg, fingers, am ortback         10. Permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, am ortback       Any speech deforts       Stoma and the foot, leg, fingers, am ortback       Croup 5. \$1,000 and over.         10. Permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, am ortback       Kort limited in any of thes		10. Trouble with varicose veins     23. Chronic nervous trouble       11. Hemorthoids or piles     24. Chronic nervous trouble       25. Cancer		The second	4. Not limited in any of these ways.
Processing information allower       28. Prosessing trouble         13. Stomach allower       28. Prosessing trouble         13. Stomach allower       Card B         Card B       NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY       Card F       Card F       NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY         Check List of Selected Impairments       1. Deafness or sectious trouble with hearing       1. Not able to keep house at all.       1. Not able to keep house at all.       1. Not able to keep house at all.       1. Not able to the part at all in ordinary play with other children.       Group 1. Under §500 (Including loss)         2. Serious trouble with seeing, even when wearing glasses       3. Cleft palate       1. Not able to keep house at all.       1. Not able to the part at all in ordinary play with other children.       Coup 3. \$1,000 · \$1,999         3. Missing fingers, hand, or am toes, foot, or leg       3. Mole if or keep house but limited in any of these ways.       4. Not limited in any of these ways.       4. Not limited in any of these ways.       5. Signers, fand, or am toes, foot, or leg       5. Joon - \$1,999       Group 4. \$2,000 - \$2,999         6. Pailay       7. Paralysis of any kind       8. Repeared trouble with back or spine       4. Not limited in any of these ways.       6. Not limited in any of these ways.       Group 6. \$4,000 - \$4,999       Group 7. \$5,000 - \$6,999       Group 9. \$5,00		12. Hay fever     26. Chronic skin trouble       13. Tumor, cyst or growth     26. Hernia or rupture       14. Chronic skin trouble     27. Hernia or rupture			
Cord B     Card D     Card F     Card F     Card H       NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY     Family income during past 12 months       1. Deafness or serious trouble with baseing, even when weating glasses     1. Not able to keep house but limited in amout or kind of housework.     1. Not able to keep house but limited in amout or kind of play.     Group 1. Under \$500 (Including loss)       2. Serious trouble with seeing, even when weating glasses     3. Able to keep house but limited in amout or kind of play.     3. Able to keep house but limited in amout or kind of play.     3. Able to keep house but limited in amout of other activities.     4. Not limited in any of these ways.     Group 1. Under \$500 (Including loss)       6. Palsy     7. Paralysis of any kind     8. Repeated trouble with back or spine     9. Oth binted fin any of these ways.     Group 4. \$2,000 ± \$2,999       6. Club foot     10. Permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, arm or back     I. Not limited in any of these ways.     Group 5. \$10,000 ± \$19,999       6. Dels foot     10. Permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, arm or back     I. Mort limited in any of these ways.     Group 7. \$10,000 and over.		14. Chronic galibladder of liver trouble 15. Stomach ulcer 28. Prostate trouble			
Card B     Card D     Card F     Card H       NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY     NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY     NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY     NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY       Check List of Selected Impairments     1. Deafness or serious trouble with seeing, even when wearing glasses     1. Not able to keep house at all.     1. Not able to keep house but limited in amount or kind of housework.     1. Not able to keep house but limited in amount or kind of housework.     1. Not able to keep house but limited in amount or kind of housework.     1. Not able to keep house but limited in amount or kind of play.     Group 1. Under \$300 (Including loss)       3. Cleft palate.     Any speech defect     3. Able to keep house but limited in amount of other activities.     3. Able to keep house but limited in amount of other activities.     4. Not limited in any of these ways.     Group 3. \$1,000 - \$1,999       7. Paralysis of any kind     8. Repeated trouble with back or spine     9. Club foot     Group 1. gl, 999     Group 1. \$1,000 - \$1,999       10. permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, am or back     In any of these ways.     Group 9. \$1,000 - \$1,999     Group 9. \$1,000 - \$1,999       4. Any speect defort     In Apple comments at iffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, am or back     In any of these ways.     Group 9. \$1,000 - \$1,999       9. Club foot     In Apple commits of the foot, leg, fingers, am or back     In Apple commits of the foot, leg, fingers, am or back     In Apple commits of the foot, leg, fingers, am or back     In Apple commits of	٩				
NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY         0       Check List of Selected Impairments       For: Housewife       For: Children under 6 years old       Family Income during past 12 months         1       Deafness or serious trouble with hearing       1. Not able to keep house bat all.       1. Not able to keep house bat all.       1. Not able to keep house bat limited in amoun or kind of housework.       1. Not able to keep house but limited in amoun or kind of plas.       Group 2. \$500 - \$1999         3       Cleft palate.       3. Able to keep house but limited in kind or amount or kind of plas.       6. Able to play with other children.       Group 3. \$1,000 - \$1,999         6       Paisy       Nortalysis of any kind       8. Repeated trouble with back or spine       Nort limited in any of these ways.       Group 5. \$3,000 - \$2,999         10. permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, arm orbert       House Ho		Card B	Card D	Card F	Card H
Check List of Selected Impairments       For: Housewife       For: Children under 6 years old       Family income during past 12 months         1. Deafness or serious trouble with backing       1. Not able to keep house at all.       1. Not able to keep house but limited in amount or kind of housework.       I. Not able to keep house but limited in amount or kind of play.       Group 1. Under \$500 (Including loss)         3. Cleft palate       3. Able to keep house but limited in amount or kind of play.       3. Able to keep house but limited in amount or kind of play.       Group 3. \$1,000 - \$1,999         6. Palsy       7. Paralysis of any kind       8. Repeated trouble with back or spine       9. Not limited in any of these ways.       Group 5. \$3,000 - \$3,999         9. Club foot       10. permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, arm or back       I. Mort limited in any of these ways.       Group 7. \$5,000 - \$9,999         4. Nay condition present since birth       I. Any condition present since birth       I. Mort limited in any of these ways.       Group 5. \$3,000 - \$1,999         6. Palsy       7. Paralysis of any kind       8. Repeated trouble with back or spine       Group 7. \$5,000 - \$6,999         9. Club foot       10. permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, arm or back       I. Mort limited in any of the set in the dire limited in any of inclusion present since birth       Group 9. \$10,000 and over.		NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY	NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY	NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY	NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY
1. Deafness or serious trouble with hearing       1. Not able to keep house at all.       1. Not able to ake part at all in ordinary play with other children.       Group 1. Under \$500 (Including loss)         2. Serious trouble with seeing, even when wearing glasses       1. Not able to keep house but limited in amount or kind of housework.       1. Not able to keep house but limited in amount or kind of play.       Group 1. Under \$500 (Including loss)         3. Cleft palate       1. Any speech defect       2. Able to keep house but limited in kind or amount of other activities.       3. Able to keep house but limited in any of these ways.       3. Able to keep house but limited in any of these ways.       6. Palsy       3. Able to keep house but limited in any of these ways.       4. Not limited in any of these ways.       6. Fouls foot       6. Palsy       4. Not limited in any of these ways.       6. Pouls with back or spine       9. Club foot       6. Permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingets, arm or back       4. Not limited in any of these ways.       6. Group 5. \$1,000 - \$2,999       6. Group 7. \$5,000 - \$6,999         4. Any condition present since bitth       1. Any condition present since bitth       4. Not limited in any of these ways.       6. Group 9. \$10,000 and over.		Check List of Selected Impairments	For: Hausewife	For: Children under 6 years old	Family income during past 12 months
<ul> <li>2. Serious trouble with seeing, even when wearing glasses</li> <li>3. Cleft palate</li> <li>4. Any speech defect</li> <li>5. Missing fingers, hand, or arm toes, foot, or leg</li> <li>6. Palsy</li> <li>7. Paralysis of any kind</li> <li>8. Repeated trouble with back or spine</li> <li>9. Club foot</li> <li>10. Permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, arm or back</li> <li>4. Any condition present since birth</li> <li>2. Able to keep house but limited in amount or kind of play.</li> <li>3. Able to keep house but limited in amount or kind of play.</li> <li>4. Not limited in any of these ways.</li> <li>5. Missing fingers, hand, or arm toes, foot, or leg</li> <li>6. Palsy</li> <li>7. Paralysis of any kind</li> <li>8. Repeated trouble with back or spine</li> <li>9. Club foot</li> <li>10. Permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, arm or back</li> <li>4. Any condition present since birth</li> </ul>		1. Deafness or serious trouble with hearing	1. Not able to keep house at all.	1. Not able to take part at all in ordinary play with other children.	Group 1. Under \$500 (Including loss)
Any speech defect       3. Able to keep house but limited in kind or amount of other activities.       Iimited in amount or kind of play.       Group 3. \$1,000 - \$2,999         6. Palsy       3. Able to keep house but limited in kind or amount of other activities.       4. Not limited in any of these ways.       Group 5. \$3,000 - \$2,999         7. Paralysis of any kind       8. Repeated trouble with back or spine       9. Club foot       Group 6. \$4,000 - \$6,999         10. Permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, arm or back       1. Any condition present since bitth       Group 9. \$10,000 and over.		<ol> <li>Serious trouble with seeing, even when wearing glasses</li> <li>Cleft palate</li> </ol>	2. Able to keep house but limited in amount or kind of housework.	2. Able to play with other children but	Group 2. \$500 - \$999
S. Missing fingers, hand, or am toes, foot, or leg       amount of other activities.       4. Not limited in any of these ways.       Group 4. \$2,000 - \$2,999         G. Palsy       A. Not limited in any of these ways.       Group 5. \$3,000 - \$3,999         7. Paralysis of any kind       S. Repeated trouble with back or spine       Group 6. \$4,000 - \$4,999         9. Club foot       Group 8. \$7,000 - \$9,999       Group 8. \$7,000 - \$9,999         10. Permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, arm or back       Group 9. \$10,000 and over.		4. Any speech defect	3. Able to keep house but limited in kind or	limited in amount or kind of play.	Group 3. \$1,000 - \$1,999
6. Palsy       4. Not limited in any of these ways.       Group 5. \$3,000 - \$3,999         7. Paralysis of any kind       B. Repeated trouble with back or spine       Group 6. \$4,000 - \$4,999         9. Club foot       Group 7. \$5,000 - \$6,999       Group 8. \$7,000 - \$9,999         10. Permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, arm or back       Group 9. \$10,000 and over.         11. Any condition present since birth       Group 9. \$10,000 and over.		5. Missing fingers, hand, or arm toes, foot, or leg	amount of other activities.	4. Not limited in any of these ways	Group 4. \$2,000 - \$2,999
7. Paralysis of any kind       Group 6. \$4,000 - \$4,999         8. Repeated trouble with back or spine       Group 7. \$5,000 - \$6,999         9. Club foot       Group 8. \$7,000 - \$9,999         10. Permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, arm or back       Group 9. \$10,000 and over.         11. Any condition present since birth       Group 9. \$10,000 and over.		6. Palsy	4. Not limited in any of these ways.		Group 5. \$3,000 - \$3,999
9. Club foot 10. Permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, arm or back 11. Any condition present since birth Cr		7. Paralysis of any kind 8. Repeated trouble with back of spine			Group 6. \$4,000 - \$4,999 Group 7. \$5,000 - \$6,999
10. Permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, arm or back 11. Any condition present since birth CT		9. Club foot		۲.	Group 8. \$7,000 - \$9,999
Il. Any condition present since birth       P       O		10. Permanent stiffness or any deformity of the foot, leg, fingers, arm or bac	k í		Group 9. \$10,000 and over.
		•			
		11. Any condition present since birth			

± U. S. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE : 1963 O - 672878

#### SELECTED REPORTS FROM THE U.S. NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY

Public Health Service Publication No. 584

#### Series A (Program descriptions, survey designs, concepts, and definitions)

- No. 1. Origin and Program of the U.S. National Health Survey. 25 cents
- No. 2. The Statistical Design of the Health Household-Interview Survey. 35 cents.
- No. 3. Concepts and Definitions in the Health Household-Interview Survey. 30 cents
- No. 4. Plan and Initial Program of the Health Examination Survey. 35 cents

#### Series B (Health Interview Survey results by topics)

- No. 8. Persons Injured by Class of Accident, United States, July 1957-June 1958. 40 cents.
- No. 9. Impairments by Type, Age, and Sex, United States, July 1957-June 1958. 25 cents.
- No. 16. Types of Injuries, Incidence and Associated Disability, United States, July 1958-June 1959. 30 cents.
- No. 18. Acute Conditions, Incidence and Associated Disability, United States, July 1958-June 1959. 30 cents.
- No. 23. Acute Conditions, Geographic Distribution, United States, July 1958-June 1959. 30 cents.
- No. 24. Acute Conditions, Seasonal Variations, United States, July 1957-June 1960. 35 cents.
- No. 32. Hospital Discharges and Length of Stay: Short-Stay Hospitals, United States, 1958-1960. 40 cents.
- No. 33. Acute Conditions, Seasonal Variations, United States, July 1957-June 1961. 40 cents.
- No. 34. Acute Conditions, Geographic Distribution, United States, July 1960-June 1961. 30 cents.
- No. 35. Selected Impairments by etiology and Activity Limitation, United States, July 1959-June 1961. 40 cents
- No. 37. Persons Injured by Detailed Type and Class of Accident, United States, July 1959-June 1961. 40 cents.
- No. 39. Persons Injured in the Home and Associated Disability, United States, July 1959-June 1961.
- No. 40. Disability Days Due to Injury, United States, July 1959-June 1961.

Series C (Health Interview Survey results for population groups)

- No. 1. Children and Youth, Selected Health Characteristics, United States, July 1957-June 1958. 35 cents.
- No. 2. Veterans, Health and Medical Care, United States, July 1957-June 1958. 40 cents.
- No. 3. The Hawaii Health Survey, Description and Selected Results, Oahu, Hawaii, October 1958-September 1959. 40 cents.
- No. 4. Older Persons, Selected Health Characteristics, United States, July 1957-June 1959. 45 cents.
- No. 5. Selected Health Characteristics by Area, Regions and Urban-Rural Residence, United States, July 1957-June 1959. 35 cents.
- No. 6. Selected Health Characteristics by Area, Divisions and Large Metropolitan Areas, United States, July 1957-June 1959. 35 cents.

No. 7. Currently Employed Persons, Illness and Work-Loss Days, United States, July 1959-June 1960. 80 cents.

Series D (Developmental and Evaluation Reports)

- No. 1. A Study of Special Purpose Medical-History Techniques. 30 cents.
- No. 2. Co-operation in Health Examination Surveys. 35 cents.
- No. 3. Hospital Utilization in the Last Year of Life. 30 cents.
- No. 4. Reporting of Hospitalization in the Health Interview Survey. 50 cents.
- No. 5. Health Interview Responses Compared With Medical Records. 45 cents.
- No. 6. Attitudes Toward Co-operation in a Health Examination Survey. 35 cents.
- No. 7. Evaluation of a Single-Visit Cardiovascular Examination. 30 cents.
- No. 8. Comparison of Hospitalization Reporting in Three Survey Procedures.

#### Catalog Card

U. S. National Health Survey.

Disability days due to injury, United States, July 1959-June 1961; statistics on the disability days due to injury, by age, sex, residence, geographic region, family income, usual activity status, race, and type and place of accident. Based on data collected in household interviews during the period July 1959-June 1961. Washington, U. S. Dept. of Health, Education, and Welfare, Public Health Service, 1963.

45 p. tables. diagts. 26cm. (11s Health statistics, ser. B40) U. S. Public Health Service Publication no. 584-B40.

1. Sick leave - U. S. 2. Accidents - Statistics. I. Title.

Cataloged by Department of Health, Education, and Welfare Library.

 $\sim$